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Kia ora, talofa, kon'nichiwa,
ni hao, marhaba, hola

As a people, New Zaaland |5 constantly learing what

1 5 that brings us together and as a country, how we
confribute to the world. We taka great pride in our unique
position hese In the deep blue Pacific, our specal haritage
unrvalied landscapes, and our values — which Include
communiy, partrership and respect

i many ways, those three words sum up the theme

of this year's Annual Report

Hemke's Bay Arport is more than smply an assortme
of bulidings on tarmac. It is & colaction of pao
collaborate widely, solve problems

for excedl ence

G

ch pillar, these are dedicatad and pa
aihveduals from all walks of life, using thar wisdom and

A \Warm Welcome

axpanence 1o sarve tha people of Hawka's Bay — and
el these from arcund e globe —in the best way

nessbie, as our "A]l]bll' CoMinuas 10 grow and thrve

Attachment 2

A selection of their storles are highSghted within the

15 of this Annusal Raport

D &

Hawke's Bay Alrport Ltd | Annuwal Report 2019 |
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Contact Detaills

Hawke's Bay Aiport Limited
REGISTERED OFFICE POSTAL ADDRESS
Termiral Bulldng PO Bax 721

111 Main Noeth Road Napier 4140
Napier 4140 Hawke's Bay
Hawke's Bay New Zealand

Naw Zisaland

admin@tawkesboy-airport. co.nz
v ks bay- abpoet 00,12

Bankers
ANZ Bank New Zesiand Lt

Soiicitors
Kenangaton Swan

Auditors

Baskear Tilly Stuyses Rodway Audt Limdted
or behall of the Auditor General

2 | Hawews 83y Akport LI | Anmia Fmport 2019

ITEM 7

PAGE 4

ltem 7

Attachment 2



HBAL Annual Report 2019 Attachment 2

Contents

Aot Your Avpont J FYEICE HTonTaETCE
& o= W AN MY A TATTY AR ITO
Chanman's Heoor! . FINANCIA STATEMEN

[__'Fl'j 3 |yt c Directovs' Reocrt

-~ A A
ViSO, WS

Simtmratwity Framevwork 13 Statamert of Conpraherone oo 4]
Board of LA Y 14 oY J
ST i = en Fir 4
Fropert L ar y =
.X“ . "‘ l,' 1 f 4 14 “'
N PN r
! 3 A bror's Repont v

k& E Bay Avport L0 | Annwal Repori-3048

ITEM 7 PAGE 5

ltem 7

Attachment 2



HBAL Annual Report 2019

Attachment 2

ITEM 7

PAGE 6

ltem 7

Attachment 2



HBAL Annual Report 2019

Attachment 2

:Abouz‘ Your Ainoort

In 2019 Hawke's Bay Amort celebrated 55 years
of official sarvice to the local communtty, travelars
and intemational visitors.

Sinca the 15th of Februnry 1964, milions of
passengers have passad through its gates, and
many hundeeds of theusands mo angaos with
the Axport In myriad ways.

The Alport |s 50% owned and operated by

the Crowwn with Napier, City Courcil holding
26% and Hastings District Council 24%

15 within a unigue astuanne amdronment that
uritil the destructive 1531 Hawke's Bay earthquake,
vas a tidal lagoon. The magnitude 7.9 quake rased
the saabed by up 1o two mitres, creating mary
hectires of land whese onga there had been only
walae, The Aiport values Its physical posion and
the responsbiities that come with the anvironment
surmoundng it. Many native species accupy tha
vistiand arsas within the cument 183ha ste, and the
Alrport team works hard 1o maintin healthy hatstaty
for the wildife that sham this space

Hawke's Bay Alrport is & frue transport hits

Alr New Zeatand, Jetstar, Orignalr and Soands
Air offer commercial flights to and from our
Alrport, Charter Hights, car rental, a2ro cluty
and gF ambulance services also operate from
the site. As the Aiport grows increasingly busy,
Hake's Bay Alrport Limited contlrues to rsview
and improve [frastruciure and seodces, always
mving steadify towirds the goal of being the
most vibrant and successhid regional airport

n New Zealand

With passangsr movements on fargat 1o raach

ore million by 2025, Hawke's Bay Arport really

is the gatevay to Hawke's Bay and Its development
and improvement wik help ensure sustained future
groweh for o who resida bersa

‘v'*"-' gﬂa” i«-’-‘&:‘e—‘ﬂ-'*m

4 ‘\('1*
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| am pleased to report on the performance of
Hawka's Bay Arport Limited for the financal particitat

e enced June 20149 [ 56€ 3 KI0ng U

& - sanica develop. This C
There have been sipnficant demands over this
’ ; A al levek of owr

penod. Howevar, In spita 2, tha Alrpce

business. We have also sean oroanisational change
has enjoyed another year of substantial growth Sy
- J et we warmly wed A )} Rache Orchard
and commardat sic Despis higher
chnical Waorks Coordinator, N

than axpected expensa A

5 the Airport, This year has also sear
unanticiperted ona-olf ¢

15 bullding stronges pa

deliverad anather Stong fmancial perdormance

Rearye

1 pay il -
for its hard wark and dedi HOPANTR COTNRBN0RG Gany I < W
sionad a Memorandum of Understanding
with Hawke's Bay Alr Ambulance Charitabie Trust
qing of 1he dem o annual sponsorshig
vas the voluntary admie
= prog
WiINg a key change to the delivery .
| g s T } ””‘_;’"‘ yeal
W ypansion fonct. s ¥rrand for ol Al asronautical studes
freight feasiility
" | " 1as been supportad by thy
Government, with a S200,000 grant from the

afinue almost saamiessly with the s

Chairmans Report

<20 Provincial Growdh Fund. This
ew subsidary compary, Hawke's Bay Arport
: A Z OMITISS0r 5
d. Undes Arrowy, the Arport Company
ety progressad construction with Stage
vall area, opened Ir

f the project is forging ahead and itis

Attachment 2

=i 0 S8 bath the roof and Toor completad
Work 1s o

departise hal in (

dearly evident
ppartng ¢

| am very much loking forward o this che
realised. On behalf of the Alrport Company
: and thank

for thelr

rnanl The revised
angal numbrs o batweaen 1.and 1.1 million
par year, batter amandies for passangers and fulure
;r‘.i W for any further seaurily entian

be required dovn the line. | would like
a0 nitinued support throughout the year. In particular
owledge the valuabis input of Mana Ahuriri's { ke to hank i h P
i1 like to hank thosa who have supporied us
athes into the design of the new temmind's ‘
thvough the challenges and halped 10 enabia ot
Wace” The Board and | are excited b 5 -
sucoess, Fnaly, | woukd | like fo extend a special
tha cpporun the naw facilties will prov X A
Z ; tharks 1o the team of volunteer Arport Ambe
0 Our arling businass parnrs, fravelierns, re

who are doing a wondeiul job helping passangsr:

3nd e ragion & g
i wough the Beminal

Tha Aliport sat a

mover Sinthe! angers
ahead 3% growth In passangsr
has been underpinned by a 6% growth Inzsd

: fhers are a nurmber of other changes an

Iimprovemants 1o our busness which are outlines Tony Porter | Charman

Hawka's Bay Alport Ltd | Anual Report
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Inheriting the leadership of Hawke's Bay Alrport Jthar revanue streams such as
durng a period of significant changg has bee
exciing and (rmigomting

OLf Ored
abntes 10 delver axcallancs S M Ncamy in this area
v ensuring
growth thioughout the
= wah our widée hozard man ent
annaunce that we
ONIracior induction froc

hring Jure the Ol Aasabon Autharily undsriook
3N0eT numbers gives us both a iR ve-vearty recertification of the Aimort which vas
in revenue and a fiow-on sffect 1o other passenges awarded on 29'07/2019. Now, the team s preparing
redated Income streams for the planned y Management Certification Audt

02 In Ociooe
This growth, and projected passenger figures, undaming :

our 2cision I nerease the inestment into cur tamnal also well unoer

design. Along with the greater capacily it will bring — the Masterplan, which com
for the higher investmes passengers

WE notice ity Improved sense of place Wi : C2Ure Stes plan 20 holudes

Sriving, tex . OF pACKIng L

Developed with cur sharehalders, key stakehol

the community and Mara Ahurin, the dessgn will really

from e Arport } RS% W irams nd i WS, whic

fontfied as a key ara

speak to who we are and what we deliver as a regior
e 4 proud of the strides
and | am very much IooKng onwor

) . § relgionships witl
It compieates ,
('VL'IZ SAOns, cou ils and busness O s \'-LJ"’»
As o resuft of fhe positive changes to our design We were reoently named the Pla Sponsor for
prans, we were abie 10 optimise the delivery of our yodiversty Hawkes B af rship that enabie
staped projact and openad our arrivals ball ahaad of !

iiral plan by some sk months. Proourern

a new ca parkin

Attachment 2

s ik Wil note throughout this rep

Up and running oy how thw Inferact wit

However we also exparienced soma notable ) whid we do as busire

with the project. requiring a rapid and workabls commencad a bi-annual customer survay wh

solution from the team. When Anow went into volurtary aim to share publicly and use to onderpin our

able to switly gain a mandate continuous Improvement during FY19/20

Akport Limied Board to establst

a subsidary would retan key construction staff

and contractors

| am plaased to be presenting his 2019 A
ration welh ¢
sharzholoers Jusness parnes on the delivery

of our 201972020 5C

) =
@
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with the project under Hawke
O3
parioc 64 ¥ (hfee W & hal, W - .
&0 axpenencing a = ) N complethor g L
—8
Stuart Ainslie | Cle! Besout
anwe growth has 1 308d over the past year wath

th ot 16 | Al of 4%, 13% above

|, Margins remain

WO Over the coming vear

Hawka's B
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Where We Are Heading

We are commitiedt to defivering outstanding sendce fo everyone who comes in contact With our Arport. That means taking
Into account a varisty of faciors, from how we priottise safety, 1o the way we treat the environment, fo the projects we
embark on and who we engage 1 |ead them

Our vison, mission, values and strategic pilars are st 1o reflect how we wish to move forwerd.

Safety First

Satety will always be our top priority

Qers by

e

Visio

Care and Respect
for our People
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PROPERTY

Naking tha best
safeguardng
and Increase val

PEOPLE

Working fogether to gt the best oucome:
10 Our pagee in a8 graal place o work

and INe

COMMERCIAL

Maximisng the refurns across ou

IPERATIONS

Ensuring & sate, rewasaing and dalightiué
journey for our ¢ 5. Sriving for

ssliance inavanh

0N

PARTNERS

1 OUT QUSHoIMEr taxsholden

Engaging

business partners and community to grow

our Alrport I a wasy which benefits ev

A great place to 0o business
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Sustainability Framework

Our commitrnent to sustainabiiity will be unwavenng. it Is a quiding

principie that will shape our gacision maxing to ensure It takes a holistic

approach that censigers all four pillars of our sustainabiity frarmework

We Wil grow our business In a way that delivers financial retums; Is emironmentally axcellent, socally responsibie
and operationally efficsant

Invest inour people Optimise the airfie
and positialy 8] COre proces
ankribute ) enlance puncluaity
;“

ationss flexitility
vl resifience

OBJECTIVES

axpanens axl s 9 [ 17 H)e [ ¥yl secure Al
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—
C
)
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O
)
—
b
<

Qustomer sefvice loal and embzece inchsion | o all usar

112 workglace
Catalysa reglonal econamic oy Ba operationally efficis
Jrowah and nurtue AlL ( Ernbeace the Irmova e and e
commercial success 8 20t of future B ) 10 natural disase

alty of ¥e of the dimate chanoes

mimury

OUTCOMES
(S0
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Board of Directors

Tony Porter

Chaiman

Sarah Park

Chair of the Audit and Finance Commitiee

Tery has sarved as a dractor of HBAL since 1997
and was elected Chairman of Directors in July 2014,
He has enjoyed a notaworthy engineering career in
structural and bridge design, transportation asset
management and busness managemant, specialising
over the |atter years i asset management and
procurement options for managing road networks

Tory has a BE [Hors) in Civil Engingering, is a Fellow
of the Institite of Professional Engineers and a Member
of the Institute of Drectors New Zealand,

Wendie Harvey

Sarah was appointed to the Board of HBAL in July 2014

She has a degres in Economics from the Uniarsty of
Edinburph, Sarsh has a goad exeautive pedigree ganed fom
working in the Mergers and Acquisibons and Capital Markets
Bams at HSBC invastment Bank (LK) and the PwC (NE) and
nthe venture capitd arena in the US and Asia. A strong
fundationd excutive career has progressad info multiplke
Tois in governance in New Zealind. Sarah's directorships
nciude Pacific Bdge, Focus Genetics and Eurogrow. She also
5% on ha Board of Trustess at Heraworth Schodl,

Taine Randell

Wendie was apponted to the HBAL beard in July 2016
following an extensive kgal career spacalsing In employment
law ard human resource management. Wendie brings
ower 25 years' expenance as a lawyer, axecutive manager,
business corsuitant and professional directr.

Wendie's governance career reflacts her inferests in strategy
development, infrastructure management and fie promation
of haalth and safety In the workplace. Her appointments
Includa the Boards of Port of Napier, Centralines Limited,
Auwora Energy Ltd as directorship, ETCO (Bectrical Training
Company Ltd) and Fire and Emergangy New Zeafand.
Wende also serves ns a Commissioner on the New Zealand
Gambling Commission and is a Council Member of the
Eastem Instituts of Technology.

Following an extersive rofessional rughy career

n New Zealand and the UK, incuding Captaincy of the

Al Blacks, Tain2 pursued a career In finance and
commodity markets both atfshare and locally. These skills
have enabled him 1o contribute to @ number of governance
foias ¥ both commercial and social sectors

Taine's curent directorships Include Australian Lobster
Company, Kahutia Limited. Fiordiand Lobster Company,
Kivdgarden. Taine is a0 a trustes of the Wharanid Trust,
an organsation that provides soclal services In Flaamere,

14 | Hawke's Gay Arport Ld | Annusl Agport 2619
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Senior Management

Stuart Ainslie

Chiel Execiutive Officer

Rachel

Orchard

Chief Anancial Officer

Stuart Is a servor alrport executive with over 18 years’
expenence in pubfic and povately-owned intemational

hub and regionat airports in the UK. Australia and Papua
New Guines. A professionally qualfied enginesr, Stuart Is

& consummate senior Rader with & special focus on, and
understanding of, airports and associated infrastructurs

He has also run and managed his own adation consultancy.

Sueart Is a drector of the New Zealand Alrports Association

and its on tha board of the Art Deco Trust.

Dean Smith
Strategy & Businass
Development Manager

Dean joined Hawke's Bay Airport in
2016 bringng with him over 15 years
of professional expenance across

the financal services and wina
Incustries in both New Zealand

and maintand China.

Daan leads Hawke's Bay Airport's
business developrment, commercial
and communications functions as
el as holding responsibiity for the
development and Integration of the
company’s strategic planaing procass.
Dean holds Bachelors degrees in

both Commerce and Science from
the University of Auckland.

An experienced leader, Rached's work across a number of indieties
has seen her lead change and revamp business processes within
arganisations. She has signficant experiance as a senior manager,
working with ak levels o effectively manage an ently’s commercial
and business parformance.

Rachel s a valuad member of the Hawke's Bay Arport Limited
Bam, and s reguiarly imohed in strategy discussions. Along with
her strong commercid acumen, she biings a laser focus to the

bottom Ine. Rachd & an Assocate Chartered Accountant and
gained distinction when compleling her MBA,

v

Gareth Mentzer

Stephanie Murphy
Cparations Manager Alrport Planner
Garath brings over 15 years' Stephanie hes devatad her career io
exparience in diverss operational commesrtial planning and infrastructure

and business mles to Hawke'sBay  and has held key roles within electricity,
Airport. He enjoys the variety of his anergy and avation comparias

position with the Airport, leaming
from other leaders and meeting
the challenges of a muti-faceted
operational Bndscape

Garsth hokd a Bachelor of
Computing Systems and applies
les practical and araltical

skills dally, within & busy airport
envronment experiancing both
growth and change. Outsids of
work, Gareth can often be found
on the sidalines of his children's
sports matchas.

She refishas the challenge of developing
new projects from an envionmental,
commerciai and long-1arm strategic
planning perspective, with & career
highlight the consenting of Australasia’s
famest wind farm. Stephanie enjoys seeing
sustanable progress take shape and
unbcking the potential of Hawke's Bay
Arport aongsids a highly engaged team.
She hokds a Bachelor of Resource and
Emironmental Planning, and koves
spending time with family and friends
travelling, cycing, skiing and explaring

Hawke's Gay Arport Lid | Anvuiaf Aeport 2010 115
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Watchman Road Project

Journeys to and from the Airport changad this year, as our
\Watchman Road project wrapped up and the new appmach
opened i the public. We have enjoyed hearing feedback
on hese roading mprovements, and thair positve effect
on éficiency, safety, visbilty and aesthetics. We ako
atknowledge the collaborative approach taken in getting
the Watchman Road project 1 compledon — it was a frue
coming together of several agencies fncluding confractoes,
Napier City Counal, Mana Ahurin and NZTA) to achieve
something very special

\We certanly feel that cur enhanced gateway to the reglon s
leadng a lasting impression on those who travel through it

Terminal Redevelopment

Now, our focus shifts o the termingl expansion, which
was Increasad n scope by H40sqm in order to meat
future demands such as upcoming secunty sareening
requirements and changing revenue opportunities, Another
reason for the revision was projected passenger numbers.
Our original expansion plan was sat to cater for up to
800,000 passangers, larecagted for 2024, But with strong
passenger growth showing, that florecast has bean brought
forward 10 2020. Hawke's Bay Alrport expects to reach
one milkon passenger movements by 2026 and additional
fioor space was required to accommodate the increasing
volume of travellars,

The collapse of Arow Construction in February 2019
vas an unforeseen challenge, but was handled effidently
by aff at Hawke's Bay Airpert Limitad. More en this, and
the subsequent establishment of Hawke's Bay Airport
Construction Limited, can be found on page 21

Our complete terminal redevelopment wil open tovards
the end of 2020, and we are confident it will be well
received by the peopla of Hawke's Bay, and wisitors to
our ragion. Artist Jacob Scott, of Mana Ahurirl, has taken
a lead role In the development of the visual companents
of the Airport, weaving local and global stones into the
Arport elements, and showcasing the bourdiful region
ve live in. Jacob was nstrumental in the design elements
of the Watchman Road project and the storyteding ha
has achieved here will be brought nght through the
Arport terminal

Airport Land Develuwmo/n

New grouryd lease agraements have bean entered into for
e development of approsimately 3,000sgm of Aiport land

This will faciitzte the relocation of the existing @dation

fugd farm to a ske that is s¥rategically positioned relative

1 the future growth f the apron. Other davelopments

& the Alrport will ndude the establishment of a new priate
it centre and the construction of a new paneral aviation
hangar. Negodations are @so well advanced in relation to
an addbiong 2,500sqm of deveiopment — anticipated early
in the new financlal year. & has been encouraging to see
e postive impact the Watchman Road project has had

n stmuiating development interest & the Aiport.
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Masterplan and the
Resource Management Act

The update of our 20-Year Mastarplon ls advancing 1o schecule
The Imparative 1 fo endire that the Masterplan safeguards

tha abilty for the Alrport 1o grow scstainaliy vt the futura and
Ity mlggnimant with HBAL's Strategic Framavwerk

)0 orces to continge deviioping futury passanger growth iofocasts
o Mot outabiehid 2 portrorsils with Chinstoliurch tirnatons
Arport. Tholr avation planning axderts will el with foecasts

to undarmin the Mastarplon's growth assumptions

In aodition, we have rataned planning consuitants Mitched Daysh
10 work hand in-hand with Executive Maragament i ldansdying
i requrad planning framenwonk

Followey the ergagement of an dcoustic congltare, wes have hean
campling noed rosiionng Ifarmaltion wa two nolse monltanng
1es deployed 1o the nalth and south of the airfield. The dta
collectad Whll Inform the proposed nolse boundanes withn the
Masterplan. Furthermors, aeropautical planning axpens Al

— who vava gngaged Tofowing HBAL approval in March — haye
lod i sanes of vorkshops 10 kimbily e necessary nfrastctral
provulony bo be incliadad In the plih. Thass Covar Bems such as
sustainability, mam ronwey length and cress nuway Lsage

Dther mitin st &5 1o be undertaken include fanspont, landscops
retesciogy, cultual and stormwestsr, Pubilo. consultistion will
cmimense anely w1 the nev financial jeqr

Sustainability Framework

Significart focum hae besn piaced on defining tha Alrport's
suntainability fruviework. This process has icendfied the lofowing
pillars: operdlionst sMigiency, Tirancal etum, evironmental
saellence i sochy 1espongibiing This Framework Wil be
embediied a8 tha core of the srport’s Stratege Plan and Wil
ungemin future development decimons

Attachment 2
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Case Study.

Taking Flight

Whisin wsitors step off their Hight and into the fermingl, they will know
Immeciataly whers they are and what our place offers them. That's the poal

of artist and Kana Ahurin represen s Jacob Scott, who is tasked with talling
the staries of the 1egion through the vano nents of the Arpert. “The Alrport
e gateway —he Waharca — 1o the regon,” says Jaoob, 1t's a placs o
wesoome travellers, and to send them off from. And it's a place to come home t

Jacob has chosen the Kuaka ~ or godwit — 10 Inspira othe

Tegion, Kuaka conw to fead aach year from Aaska and can be spotie

Ahiriri Estunry from around Ssptember After enduring a nine-day Tligh
Stopping forast or eat, they then enoy the bounty of the Estuary, puttin

fnouoh weight to surive the joumey back to Alaska 1o braed. There
gignificance n their migration to Hawke's Bay sach year for Mana Ahurin, whoss
PEOLE RISH Used The estuary as 3 primary Jood sourca. “The godwits provide

i pmeing metaphor for hes project — they provid

Wwoekl, and of coursa they usa tha alr to do that

The kuska will feature prominent y pat of

ot shana of the- terminal tsell, akin toa godwit in i
the departures und wival areas. “Our aim is to utilise ever
and make i part of the story, from the ground ug

[ o 50 teguites colatoration between the many businesses and g

1 s il rsoesopment. Jacols sy havng besn thvough the process with the
Wisenman Road project, he's axcied to sea what can be accomplishad. “Watchman
Hosd wis & grant axpanance — temfic,” Jacoh says. “The way all the stakah

Worked foguther set 8 1eal benchimark for fiture projects. 1 was a process that wes
I no vy acversariil — instaad  recogniad thete jab to 00 and an opporunity
in & for everybody: | was o progressive afrmosphere ™

The Watchman Boad project was recently recogrised at the Institute of Public
Works Engineers Australasia N7 Beellence Avards, tikng b

for Baat Public Warks Project over $5 million. On recahing the

paid tribute fo the vahzble mput from Jacob and Mara Ahunin, among others
stafngy that much of the of the project came down to the advice of th

many stakaholgers "By setting up & ‘connaction qroup’ with res

niotect 1
PIULE N 0VOUAISS o z

the comnmunity Gan be prowd of” said the NZ
Jacoh, too, coukd not be mora pleased with the out
Bow it warmiy Welcomas visitors o the A
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“Our Airport is being
built by the people of
Hawke's Bay for the
people of Hawke's Bay”
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A Creative Solution
In 7:': Aii-trh:.L-.:r::rl‘.:'. ,'.Vnrpul Limitad faced

allenge uniike any # had experienced before

Just months Into our $20.2m expansion project, the
Alpont’s Bad construction contractors, Arrow Inlemational
wluntary administration. With years of planning
ang ual proparty s wel as tha Incomes and
Ivelinoods of the construction team) suddanly at risx

2 swilt, sustainabis solution was sought

Working at speed to  the issue, our manape

taam mat with sub-contractors and nbets of the board
wathin tsys of the event, quackly indertaking to retair

key persoinel by establishing a wholly-owned subsidiary

company ~ Hawke's

With gusdance from
HBAL board, and under
the project was able to cortinue near-se

SAIMe PIoject manaqgers, quar

oribcal juncturs

the Aport expansion is  being sed by a Hawke's Bay
company. Effe Y, our Alrport is being bullt by e people
of Hawiee's Bay, for the people of Hawke's Bay ~ something

N which we take considerable peice

aea l'\>4 &0

v Intermatonal went
NS0 volintary adminisiatio
March 2019: Hawke's Bay Airport Constrictio
Limited estabishe
October 2012 New airfine counters and
girling back-of-house facilies 1o opes
November 2019 New state-of -the-art car park
accass contiol lechnology Instali
Mid 2020: F
PRCSLDOr 00~ aleds rel
Mid 2020: Aimort tarming food. beveraoe

and reae odenngs open

Late 2020: Owr Alrport expansion project |s completed

”~
~
HAWKE'S BAY AIRPORT

CONSTRUCTION
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Visitors to the Airport might nofice an infiu of friendly
faces around the terminal. We launched our ambassadors
[rogramme at the begnning of 2019, and so far, consider
ita huge success.

Ambassadors work o0 a volurtary basls, asssting
passengers as they navigate the Arport, find their way
to rental car counters of info the car park or with
answering any quastions travellers might have about
the region. They wear an ambassador's uniform for
easy ldentification and are provided with refresshments
and fuel vouchers to get to and from the Airport

\Voluntaers were recruted through online and peint
markating, and with a hupe response from keen locals
willing to halp, we cut off applications early, A selection
and induction programma led by Customer Service
Administrator Sara Cartwright followed. and we now have
a team of over 30 passionate and committed ambassadors
welkoming passangers to Hawke's Bay. A hugs thank you
to all who have jeined us

Rachel Orchard was appointed to the mia of intedm CFO
In January and following Jaanette Yule's resignation has
been retamed on a long-term basis. Rachel's abiity to
step in and provide stabiity and strategic insight has been
invaiuable and we thank her for har angoing efforts.

Stephania Murply joined the Alrport as Arport Planner
n Septamber. The primary purpese of this appointment
1 10 provide strategic oversight and management of the
Aipod’s next-ganeration sustaingble Mastarptan

Further to our recent arganisational review, and in line
vith Hawke's Bay Airport Limited's rewised stratagic plan
an appointment was made 10 the newly created Technical
Works Coordinator roke In January. Our recultment for the
new Arsde Safety Officer postion has wrapped up and
that role commenced In July 2019

Our commitment 1o recruiting the vary bast pacple in all
mies. including our volunteer positions, ensures our Alrport
continues to detiver exernplary sarvice to evaryone who
partners with us, doas business here, or passes through
our temina
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Meet and Greet

Whin Fociy Grant saw an ng 8nd articls ancournging poipnsal Aiport ambassadors (0. a0ply for & rft

0f newly crestn positions. she leant ot the chance, *I've alwanys Deer fascinatid by e Arport and by alf
travel and it & young girl, 18 waivked to bacammi a Hight attendant.” Sy the S5-yearoid. "Sadly, [ was too
ghort and couldn't swirr So wis | saw e call for smbessadors, | inught yoluntesanng would b a great
wiy 1o seve Hawle's Bay and gef ivolusd] In sorme imanes cormminity work”

Sih bobevas thal if's har “fraodly approech ang M wakcoming amila on my face” that maka her a good
cand)ien for tha job Stan Slawtards (B0), shares hee view, It |5 an enjoyable roke You' s weltgming
pEoplt o Hawkes Bay with a big amike whether they dre vinibors or passangsts refleming homes

Staus, originedly from fhe Unitid Kingetom, (s ritirad, taving servetd in the Foyel Navy and the Essex Police
Corstabiudoey, than ts Nenv Zastand Poflos and ag o Napser City Councior. "What | lgarmed from thoso
rodes was 1o be prapared o apprecwte offer peoples’ pointa of view, To be succesuful 45 an ambassadon
you nessd good cemmurication shdls, A sense of humour, and to Esten *

Felcily has many years as a mather; security officer and
carenunty advocate undar har bell and sees hersall as e

Byas ang sxs of the Arpart.”

" woll as anawerdng quisstions nd awing dirctions, | 1nd o fook out far any suspcioas bibenf out
50 sidety of young chidran, ang maddng s Mey'r witlan adut.”

She a0 risishes Gy oppotuntly 1o usssd disalés) orejderly passangers a8 iy novgats the
tarmingd and find el omweem transport

Woluntsers typically work on four-fowr (ostarod shifts, frem arount twe Shifts 3 manth up o two shifts
1 sk TN @ grest way o nest peopls. sy Sten, wid offér any assistancs h o

The most commen guestions ars amund carateng oosts, the renoition work and whirs % flnd pubie
conveniances. “uid we are Getng mera Aid mars panssntesd nakng for ditsetonn o Wsir Ariin8
accommodation ” notan Falicity

“| lowo mesting them s Some micht ave come off a bumgy fight oc haw bad delays arrdng bt
1 bg ‘wrlcome-o sy Napen® sesny Yo pub e in 5 great fame of mird *

Hawhe's Bay Abport LI | Atmlal Report 2018 1 23
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Growth and \//b/ancy

:F, COMMERCIAL: |
|

o Whilst delvening preater valis
Our Alrport Is much more than ke-offs and landings.
Our business model is multi-faceted, Incomorating a
mumber of different revenue streams as well as providing
a basa for & wide array of commercial partners

Roads and Car Parking

Our plans to Improve traffic managemant and wayfinding
are well advanced. Traftic flow will be enhanced via a
new nternal roading network which has besn developed
in order to optimise safety, nawgation and access to

the capark.

Civil works are required to compiate the changes and
create seamless integration of tha Watchman Read
profect with our existing nfrastructure.

An open tender procurement process that concluded
In February 2019 saw us select new carpark access
tachnology to be installed this coming financiaf year

as part of a $500,000 upgrade to our public camparking
weas. This specialised equipment is being manufacturad
to our specifications by German company Scheidt and
Bachmann, who have a proven track recoed In aiport
carparks around the globe. Banefias will include tap-
and-go on exit functionality and & variety of new
payment options.

Anather improvement in our ground transport offering
Is the addition of solar powered parking sensors under
the taxi rank. These sensors fead an LED screen which

advises waiting taxis of spaces, when they come avatable.

The installation has been a success, particulariy as the
technoiogy aiso halps provide usaful metrics on the
pick-up and drop-off area - this information will halp
us better undarstand peak usage and Inform resourcing.

69,376-
MAR 19

JSEST MONTH IN
:\" NONT HSTORY

Car Rental

We negotiated new kcence agreements with car rental
companies ahaad of them maving into the redevelopad
tesminal building In Janusry. The new agreements nclude
a change in commercal sattings to best refiect the
passanger growth that the Airport and its partners

have enjoyed.

Advertising and Billboards

We were successful in having resource consent granted
for new billboard stes at the new entrance to the Arport.
As part of the process, we described the Inovative
construction mathocoiogy empioyed. Includng the use
of shipping containers located on landscaped mounds
to ensure they match their surrounding anvironmeant.

Air Freight Feasabllity

A successfié appication was submittad o the
government’s Provincial Growth Fund with $200,000
sacured to assist with an air freight feasibiity study,
This work is now well undenway.
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PAGE 27

ltem 7

Attachment 2



HBAL Annual Report 2019

Attachment 2

ITEM 7

PAGE 28

ltem 7

Attachment 2



HBAL Annual Report 2019 Attachment 2

AN
+—
C
()
=
£
(@]
©
+—
]
<

PAGE 29




HBAL Annual Report 2019

Attachment 2

L

28 | Haowke's Bay Alport Lidt | Annuad Repart 2019

In

ITEM 7

PAGE 30

ltem 7

Attachment 2



HBAL Annual Report 2019

Attachment 2

Safe and Sound

ﬁ OPERATIONS Ensuring a safe, rewardiing and dehghtil fjourmey
our traveliers. Stiving for excallencs in eventhing we dc
Safety Management Wildlife Management

In any airport emdronment, safety | pararmount,

At Hawke's Bay Alrport, we continuously analyse risk,
manitor hazards, and promoats a safaty cultlre across
the business. Safety remains at the very top of ha priority
list in everything that we do.

Over the last year we have implemented a new sign-in
and induction process for contractors and visitors 1o our
management team. It's an electronic system that enstres
visitors are informed of ary potential threats as well as
how to evacuate & an emergency,

Ve led a tull-scale emargency exercise on December

18th 2018. The exerciss simulated a passanger flight
being unable to land safely, with a subsequant on-airport
accidant invotving injuries, This valuable simulation wes an
opportunity for the Arport and connected agencies to test
processes and procedures In accordance with Civil Aviation
Authority (CAA) Rula 139 requirements. This practical
rehsarsal exarcise was folloved with & deskiop exarcise

In February 2019,

It has been an excellent year for compliance. Our CAA-
requlated Safety Managemant System Implementation
plan was approved in 2018 and work has progressad
ahead of its November 2019 go-Iva date. In addtion,

our five-yearly CAA recertification audt was undertaken

in June 2019. The Arport completed the aud® with only
one minor finding, and received many pleasing comments
from the CAA. The awdit aiso gave the team an opportunity
to continue buiding capaciy and capabiity with Dean
Smith stepping i for the interview companent of this audit.

Elsewhere we have saen an upidt in the raporting of
Airport Incidents, contributing 1o a robust heal® and
safely environment and development of leading and
laggng measures.

Wie have employed a steward 1o oversee the Arport's
pik-up and drop-off one, improving traffic and pedestrian
safety as well as managing congestion.

The past year has seen a greater focus on he Arport’s
wikilife managament. Although bad strikes at Hawke's Bay
Arpoct remain relatively rare, It was Important to develop
a sound wildlite hazard managament plan to mitigate this
key safety sk

We engaged external specialists Ausure, who worked
with us on drafting a plan relavant to the bird treeds

and rative spacies that gather near the Airport, as well
as the coastal location and pasture land that make up

the Alrport environment.

Adsure’s expertise, coupled with input from the Alrport
team, has seen our widlife hazard management plan
adopted and wel understood. One indication of Its
sucoass thus far is our growdng emphasis an reporing
and analysing any incidences as they ocour, as well as
naw thinking when it comes to the treatment of pests
around the A¥poet.

Assets and Infrastructure

Qur most significant infrastructure milestone of the year
was the opening of owr antvale hall and baggage claim
area In Jaruary 2019, We vere particularly pleased to
reach this goal six months ahead of schedule, due in part
10 the revised staging of our Arport expansion project.
With changes to the airside terminal fromtage, naw

gate markings were required. Gates 3, 4 and 5 were
moved 1o the west in staged approach that alloved

the Alrport to maintaln oparation of sarvices while the
works were completed.

Using industry leading MEX software, the Airport has
racently Implemented batter systemisation of our asset
management. 'We have also commenced work on a project
that will map the Alrport using Geographic Information

Systems (GIS).

Hawke's Bay Avport LID | Amvuad Repoyt 2019 | 26
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says Garsth

fru- thhes A S
v the Ao

birds away was the most common method of wildide control, Gareth takes

ystematie and logical approach to “discouraging birds from being at tha Alrport
but encouraging tham 1o be alsswhsare.”

I's no smal task. In working with wsure 1o compiets a widife hazard
management plan, Gareth has explored many facets of bird behadour including
the dfferant feeding. nesting and laying pattarns of various species — and he’
had to cover a fot of ground. *Birds mow from pont to point and over qu

large distance,” he explaing, “so we wartt out over a 20 to 23-ldometra radius
from the Alrport 10 see where our potential widiife sourcas are. AS an example
10 understand red biled pull behaviowr, we 100k a jook at Omanang Landhll and
what impact that might have on the Airport

*Arcraft are on appeoach fom quite a distance and they start getting low over
potential rouble spots within that radius, so we keep a watching brief on
nd the Arport as well 8s any chang=s outside the Alrport hat might
2 3 New
N the Alrport environment, Garath afse
10 discourage a range of spacies. Ona mitigation 1S grass height *A
Deds don 1 ke long grass so we nanage te pasture and Be kel
10 kaep tham away We've noticed a drop In the number of Spur winged plovers
this season and as they nest on the ground, we think our pasture management
might have somefhing fo do with that *
Another wayy of dasuading bird actiity i to remave food

from the Alrport envronment. And somatimes, Ma Ao

ke insects
wil suppart @
er 10 keay (-leasad pests
d the Airport
h

5 they ame b

d animals

aal threat —Xuaks, X

tare the major risk t
wround five kilogram:
craft windsczesns. T

ielp manage the goos

ime, Garath will continus
the help of the Flre Rest
wh Mongay and nok the pog
@ IS growing all the time. © st
A deeply 1IN0 what's happenad, wiy happened e
@l the waather was doing, We aimio have
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Supporting Progress

PARTNERS: Engaging with our custorrers, stakehalders,
business panners and community to grow our Afrport in a way

which benefits sveryone. A graal place (o o busness

Hawke's Bay Alrport Limitad values #ts piace In our
Hawke's Bay community and works hard 10 connact deeply
with it, We do this in many ways — by fostering strong
retationships with our customers and asking them directly
what more we ¢an do 1o make their exparienca with 1s a
graat ong; by engagng in diaiogue with cur stakeholdars
and busness partners; by lending support to community
organisations; and by making ourseives available and
accessitie to thosa wanting to leam more about the
Almort, its peopla and how we operate.

Sponsorship

I March 2019, Havke's Bay Azport signed on as the sole
Patinum Spansor of Blodwersity Hawke's Bay. committing
fending and in-kind support of around $450,000 over the
net five yaars, This support will help build an Endowment
Fund that Sodversiy Hawke's Bay wil use to create a
rare-rich future for our region. The Memorandum of
Undarstanding antered into is hugely benaficial to both
andties — for the Alport It s another way of protecting
the enviconment in which we ¢perate and for Biodiversity
Hawka's Bay. the package will help lift its profile and fund
mportant work 10 support ecological festoration, protect
habitats and smprove blodiversity outoomss.

As both en enabier and benefactor of our regiond fourism
sconomy, the Aiport was delighted to help confritute
Towards a visit of 40 Mastars of Wine, who travelied from
aound the globe o fean more about e wines of Rawke's
Bay. Hosted by Hawke's Bay Winegrovers, the frip was an
opportunity for fhe region to showease its lconic syrahs
and chardonnays, soil pes and unique termolr, Hawke's Bay
Alrport also lent &5 support as a ey sponsol to both the
Hawke's Bay Tourism Awards, and the Hawke's Bay Expart
Avards In 2018

Vi have reaffirmad our ongoing commBiment 1o

Hawke's Bay's ar ambuiance service, the Ar Ambulance
Charitable Trust. We see this as a critical senvice for

Ut Tegion

Thea Napier Aero Qb has also benafited fram Aiport
support. We waved landing fees or their Asro Deco ewent
a5 part of the iconic Napier Art Deco Festival. I additon, the
cub was permitted o use Arport fand for event carperking

Promotion

Our taminal is prime real estata for tha promaotion

of our region In relevant and maanngful way. In 2019,
we created a pop-up space in the new arvals hall. This
space has bean used to create a sense of theatre and to
peomote a number of focal businesses. It was also used

as a platform to promote the Central Hawke's Bay regicn.

Customer Service

We stiive to create an outstanding customer experience
at the Arport. \We recently became mambars of Arports
Counail intemational (ACT and signed up 1o their Airport
Service Quality (ASQ) program. The programme Inciudes
béannual surveys of cutgoing passengers in an effort
batter understand the customer experience. The results
of these surveys will be haipful In progressing our
continual improvement objectives.

We enjoy ongoing dialogue with cur range of stakeholdars
and community groups and are happy to fulfil requests

I ghe pubidic prasentations on what is happening at

the Airport. We are also very proud of the clos2 working
partnership developad with Mana Ahunri who blessad our
ferminal at the completion of Stage One of the axpansion
project. wd input will be strongly evident in the design of
the Alrport retal and refreshment prad not with Jacob Scott
engaged to provide design alements. You can read more
on his rofe on page 19.

22 |Hawxe's Bay Awport Lid | Annun Repart 2019
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Our Partners

Hawse's Bay Arport ts commitied 10 supporting the growth and vitaity of the
wider region. In accordance with its Sponsarship and Donations Policy, the Airport
supports a growing number of business and community organisations.

7~

- :~:\, - -
bi_diversity
= Hawke's Bay
Titirr Ao Whaskamus
Camating thw Furure Together L' ] T ——

17,
) &1 HAWKE'S BAY
AUCTION TOURISM

{9 ExportNz @

SRR HAWKE'S BAY WINE
NEW ZEALAND

| | ART DECO

TRUST  aniiiiiic

i SN W . 4
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pTe’s @ unigque piace of gravel ba
by development. landscaping of hard engineenng
ownad protected 200 for he Al(port’s oross rumway. *it realy has

of the Havke landscape,” says Sapharse Murphy. “And whils 1

al ermdronment. In her spare time,
Guardian — and sha's
fepping In 1o 12 a key commercial sponsorship rofe In the

she's a Blodiversity Hawke fighted to ses her employer
omganisation

ent Fund that Biodivessit

M

ppoet will halp tull

At

C

Regener

Bichard Karn from the

1 that fund

as jad A ana

The Gap (s set to denctly be

ore Rasidants Association A taking car

amely focusad of

1o the pas
bish removal

| patch 188 Years -

ANG-WeSang, and

&S also heen soma tnal pianting, &«

cartain which plants might thrive on th

Marle Tayior owns Plant Hawke's Bay and Ias spent many hours

oofogical habltat of The Gap In her role as a Blo y Glarde
noscape with an &
SucoRssiL| spacies wa've 1
Mughlenbackia aphedroides, which looks a b e wire i
5 obfy known from & small at-fisk population in T Awange

from vahecles. So fwe can make The

Bay relias on membership fror

a3 rl':“‘f‘".l!‘l]. Y 5 AR : Al :"‘
wd priarity habitats

n individuals
overgrehing gos
nd rare speces in Hawke's Bay

10al that fits neathy with Hawke
Y A.”.-q' Ohief Executhe S8
Biodiversity Havke’s

pems all stakely

HOC] programmes

wiAinsliz Aod now, with Airport

. Guarmians and the neighbourhood working fogether

are configent that W0 Decome a Iving exa

Use TUNas wisaly to effecthely manage araval baadh amdronments in Hawka's Bay

et like this In the naddle of 3 esidential area

ITIS 3 greal poosecs, ant

Hawka's Bay Apont
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Financial
Performance

"

Underiying net profit after tax of $1.5m, on EBITDA growth ¢
ahead of the Statement of Indent

This represents a 4% NPAT Increase on the prior year with the key driver
na uplift in oparational earmings sopporiad by an overall recalibeation

3 Terms Bcross vanous ravanue streams. Inciuding

srorautical charges assodated with alrcraft landing and parking
!_WT‘ 1 Car parking reven
He NG commear

and Aifport oparatons

This strong revenue growth has supported the robust operationa eamings result
for this financeal year it |s offsat in part by oo riated with the company’s

fican! capex programme (aspacially the terminal exparsion projec currantly
& depreciation and

i

Expenditure before interest and depreciation of $3,75m was 16% highar thar
oget and 23% ahead 0O
Atancy, legal teas and
trategic diraction and growth asplrabions

Ay S geanng ri
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it of 22.2% I the Statement of Intent an

iated with the expansion of the teminal buildng

rpany paid a record fully impuged dividend of $577

mber 2018

990 to shareholders

Financial Statements
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Directors’ Report

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Directors

Directors’ Remuneration

The amount of $105,000 per annum was paid to members of tha board for the

twetve months to 30 June 2019,

T M Porter 40,500
SN Park 21.500
T C Randell 21,500
W N Harwy 21,500

105,000

No other remuneration or benefits other than normal reimbursement of expansas

has been paid or given to Directors.

There has bean no change in Dirciors during the year.

Board Committees

As at 30 June 2019 the Company had the tollowing committae:
AUDIT COMMITTEE: Members are Sarah Park (Chair), Tony Porter,

Wendi2 Harvey and Taine Randell

Entries in the Interests Register

As at 30 June 2019, the Directors have dedared general dsdosura

of interest in the faliowing entities:

TM Porter
The Pornell Tractor Company Limited

S N Park

Scoteh & Sparkles Limited

Focus Genetics Management Limitext
Focus Genetics Partnership Limited
Eurogrow Potatoes Limited
Hereworth Schoal Trust Board

Pacific Edge Limsted

T C Randell

Fiordland Lobster Compary Limited
Australian Lobster Company (G7) Limited
FLC Trustee Limited

Daltop Holdings Limited

258 Holdings Limited

Kahungunu Asset Holding Company Limited
KAHC Imvvestments Limited

Kiwigardan Limited

Director

Director/Sharahoidar
Director
Director
Director
Trustae
Director

Director
Director
Director
[irector
Director/Shareholdar
Director
Director
Director

3& | Hawke's Bay Avpart Lid | Annual Repart 2019
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W N Harvey

Centralines Limited Director
Excelence |n Business Solutions Limited Diractor/Shareholder
Port of Napler Limited Director
New Zoaland Gambling Comission Commissionar
Eastern institute of Hawke's Bay and Tarawhait! (EIT) Council Mermber
The Bectrical Training Company Limited Oirector
Aurora Energy Limited Director
Fire and Ermergency New Zeatand Director
Napler Port Holdings Limited Director

Employee Remuneration

Employee Remuneration and other benefts exceeding $100,000

2019 2018

$100,000 - $110,000 - 1
$110,001 - $120,000 - -
§120,001 - $130,000 - 2
$130,001 - §140,000 2

$140,001 - $150,000 - -
$150,001 - $160,000 7 =
$160,001 - $170,000 - 1
$170,001 - $180,000 . .
$160,000 - $190,000 - .
$190,000 - $200,000 1 -
$200,001 - $210,000 - -
$210,001 - $220,000 - -
§220,001 - $230,000 - -
$230,001 - $240,000 - %
$240,001 - $250,000 - -
$250,001 - $260,000 1 .

Auditors

The Dffice of the Auditor General is appointed as auditor under Section 15 of
the Public Audit Act 2001 and Section 70 of the Local Government Act 2002,

Phillp Pinckney of Bakerily Staplas Rodway Audit Limited has been appointed
10 provide these senices.

Directors Responsibility Statement

The Daectors are responsible for ensunng that the financal statements and the

Staterment of Service Parformance present fairy the financial pasition of the
Company as at 30 June 2019 and its firandal performance and cashfions for
the year ended on that date,

The Directors considier that the financial statements of the Company have
bean prepared using appropriate accounting policles consistently appied, and

supported by reasonable judgements and estimates and that afl relevant financial

reporting and accounting standards have been followed.

Hawke's Bay Avport Ltd | Anual Repart 2019 | 3@
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Consolidated Statement
of Service Performance

for the year ended 30 June 2019

The following is a Statament of Service Performance ralating to the Key Objectives
fisted in the Company's Statement of Corporate Intent for the year ending 30 June 2019,

ACTUAL
ACTMTY MEASURE SOl RESULT % INCREASE STATUS
OPTIMISE SHAREHOLDER Achiave Performance Targets:
VALUE & RETURNS - Passenger Numbers 706k 750K 6"

- Revenue 6633623 7685915 16

~EBITDA 3306600 3934196 16"

- NPAT 1322926 1496120 13

- ROE - annualised 43 a0

- Gearing 22° 24 »

- Dividend 520000 577,000 9

APPROPRIATE INFRASTRUCTURE

Terminal - Complete Stage 1 Northem Edension
Termiral - Stage 2 in progress and on track
for completion Oct 2019
Complete Watchman Road entrancesway project
Progress Completion of apron layout and extension desygn
Planning complete for Car Park new technology and
redevelopment works late 2019*

IMPROVE IMPACT ON THE ENVIRONMENT

Benchmark established by completed Waste Audit
Terminal Racyeling trial conducted and fully implamentad
Carbon Footprint measurement completed”
Sustainahisty Framework initiated*

PAVERSIFY THE REVENUE BASE

Increased share of revenue from non-r2guated commercial activities

RISK MANAGEMENT

SMS impiementation plan and gap analyss

NZ Civil Adation approved safely management Implementation
plan on track for Nov 19

Independent Board Evaluation

Twica yearly rek raviews

Quarterly Intemal QA audits

Wildife Management Programme & Training Developed

Renewal of Aerodrome Operating Certification®

POSITIVE CUSTOMER EXPERIENCE

Conduct Alrport Quality Survey

Monthly apron user meetings

Established sponsorship arrangements with Biodiversity Hawkes Bay,
Air Ambuiance Yarmy Army*

PEQPLE DEVELOPMENT/
EMPLOYER BRAND

New team consolidated with new CEQ

Good working relationships across management team and Soard
HR Strateqy snd Supporting Framework

Business Park remne

20 Year Mastarplan in progress (Technical Studies Completed)®
Engaged over 30 Community Alrport Ambassadors®

g A I T

KEY: B — Meets or axceeds target B —Within 10" of target & — 10" or mora below target
Ful commentary in respect of e chipctives measarad sbove are gven N the Crakman's ang Chist Executive's sepast on pages G 1o @
* Activitizs frat a2 adaitonal o thoss jdentiNiad In the Statament of Intent.
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Consolidated Statement

of Comprehensive Income

for the year ended 30 June 2019

2019 2018
$ S
Adation 4,891 625 4.014 956
Carparking 2,275,721 2102,473
Business Park 390,597 367,104
Other Revenue 12797 164,634
Totadl Revenue 7685915 6649167
Less Operating Expenses (3.751.719) (3.041,665)
Operating Profit Before Financing Costs and Depreciation 3934196 3,607.502
Depreciation (1.550,531) (1,396,041)
Finance Income 382 948
Finance Expense (130,061) (71,701)
Net Proft before income tax 2,253 996 2,140,708
Income Tax Expense (757.877) (695,733
Net Profit after income tax 1496120 1.444 975
ftems that will not be reclassified into profit or loss:
Revaluation cf Property, Plant & Equipment, nat of datamad tax 2,044 287 -
Deferred tax on revaluation 96,373 9,372
Total comprahensive income 4,536,780 1,541,347
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L

Consolidated Statement

of Changes in Equity

for the year ended 30 June 2019

Issued Retained Revaluation Total
Capital Eamings Reserve Equity
BALANCE AT 1 JULY 2018 13,789,156 7,631,082 8724329 30,144 567
Profit for the period - 1,496,120 - 1,496,120
Revaluation of Proparty, Plant & Equpmant 2944287 2044 287
Ratlassification of depreciation
on reval ued assets = 344188 (344,183) -
Movement in deferred tax
on revaluation reserve - 96,373 96,373
Total comprehensive Incoma 1,840,308 2696472 4,536,780
Digtritntions to shareholders (note 5) - (577,990 - (577,990
Movement in equity for the penod - 1,262,318 2696472 3958790
Balance at 30 June 2019 13,788,155 8,69 400 11420801 34,103,356
BALANCE AT 1 JULY 2017 13,789,155 6,528,221 8,972,144 29,290,220
Profit for the penod . 1,444 975 . 1.444 975
Reclassification of dapreciation
on revalued assets - 344187 344,187) -
Movement In deferred tax
on revaluation reserve - 96.372 96,372
Total comprahensive mcome 1,789,162 (247 815} 1,541,347
Distributions to shareholders (note 5) - (687,001) - (687.001)
Movement m equity for the perod 1,102,161 (247 815) 854,346
Balance at 30 June 2018 13,789,155 7,631,082 8724329 30,144,567
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Consolidated Statement

of Financial Position

as at 30 June 2019

Note 2019 2018

$ s

Assets
Property piant and equipment 8 47,317,601 34,912,723
Investment property 9 4,376,319 4,635,317
Intangibles 1,538 3,384
Total non-current assels 51,695,458 39.451 424
Trade and other recaivables 4 1,035,893 950,909
Casnh and cash equivalants 182,046 277979
Total current assets 1,217,930 1,228 888
Totd! assets 52,913,397 40,630,312
Equity
Issued capital 13,789,156 13,789,155
Retained earmings 8,893,400 7,631,082
Revaluation Resanve 11,420,801 8,724,329
Total equity 5 34,103,356 30,144,566
Liabilities
Defarred tax Rability 3 4487178 3,577,996
Rantals In advanca 7 1,096,022 1,180,264
Borowings 6 10,688,562 4,026,792
Total non-current liablifies 16,271,762 8,785,062
Traoe and other payables 7 2,092,652 1,702,702
Employes benefits 69,889 47992
Bomowings 6 375,738 -
Tota! current iabilities 2,538,279 1,750,694
Total liabilities 18,810,041 10.535,746
Total equity and fiabiities 52,913,397 40,680,312

Thesa financlal stataments were authorised for ssue by the board on 3 Ociober 2019 on behalf

of Hawke's Bay Airport Limited.

TONY PORTER
CHAIRNAN

<=

SARAH PARK
DIRECTOR
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Consolidated Statement
of Cash flows

for the year ended 30 June 2019
Note 2019 2018
S $
Cash flows
from operating activities
Cash was provided from:
Revenues 7,597,581 6,540,467
Interest Received 302 948
7,597,974 6,541,415
Cash was disbursed (0!
Suppliers and Employaes (@3.744,543) (3.303,211)
Goods & Services Tax (Net) {116,750 (41,071
Interast Paid (252,563) (46.636)
Income Tax Paid (863,547) (1,462,704)
(4,977 404) 4,853,622
Net cash flows from aperating activities 10 2,620,570 1.687,793
Cash flows
from investing activities
Cash was disbursed to:
Capital Works ©.176,021) (5,445,173)
Net cash flows from investing activities (2.176,021) 5,445,173
Cash flows
from financing activities
Cash was provided from:
Bormowings 7,037.508 4.026,7%
Cash was disbursed ta:
Dividends Paid {577,990) 687,001
Debit Repayment - =
NET CASH FLOWS FROM FINANCE ACTMTIES 6,459,518 3,338,791
Net increase/{decrease) in cash and cash equivalents {95,933 (417,589
Adi Opening Cash and Cash equivalents 277,919 695,568
Closing cash and cash equivalents at end of year 182.046 277,879
REPRESENTED BY:
Cash at Bank 167,578 261,816
Cash inhand 14,469 16,163
182,046 277,979
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Accounting FPolices

For the year ended 30 June 2019

Significant
Accounting Policies

Repoarting Entity

Hawke's Bay Airport Limted & a compary ncorporated in
New Zeddand under the Companies Act 1993 and is owned
by the Crown: 50%, Napier City Councit: 26%, Hastings
District Courcl: 24%.

The Company is domiciiad In New Zaaland and &s principal
piace of business Is 111 Main North Road, Westshare, Napler
The compary operates the Hawke's Bay Arpart

Hawhke's Bay Airport Limied & defined as a Councll-confrofled
orgaisation pursiant to Part 5 of the Locdl Government
Aol 2002,

Staterment of Compliance

The financial statements have been prepared as required by
the Local Government Act 2002 and in acoordance with &
appiicably financial raparting standards and olhar generally
accepiad accounting practices in New Zealand. They comply
with the New Zealand equivalents to International Financial
Reporting Standards INZ IFRS) as appropriate 10 profit
orientad entities applyng the Reduced Disclosure Ragime.

Basis of Consolidation

The consoldated finencid statements comprise the financial
stataments of Hawkes Bay Alrport Limitad and Its whelly
owred subsidiery, Hawkas Bay Alrport Constructon Umited
(e Group

Subsidiaries are entites controlled by the Group, The financial
statements of subsidiaries are noluded in the consolidated
fnancial stataments from the data that control commenoes
Lt the e hat contdl osases. Intagroup balancas and
transactions are alminated in preparing the consdidated
financial statements.

Measurement Base

The financial statements have bean prepared on a gong
concam basis In accordanca wih historcd cost

as modified by the evaluation of certain assets and labiitis
as identified in spacitic accounting pelicies baow

Presentation Currency

These Financal Statements are prasented in New Zealand
ddlers (8), which & the functional currancy of the Gruup,
rowndad 1o the nearest doliar.

Critical Accounting Estimates,
Assumptions and Judgments

The praparation of francial statemanss in coaformity with N2
FRS requires the se of cartam oritical accounting estimates.
b @50 requires management fo exercise is judgemert in Bie
process of applying the group's accourting policis.

The estimates and assocated assumptions are based on
historical experiance and various ather factes that are
balieved 1 ba reasonable under the dreumstancas. Actual
resuks may difier from thase estmates. The estimates and
indertying assumplions are reviewed on an ongaing basis.
Renisions to accounting estimates are racognisad In the
pariod i which the estimate |s revisad It the ravsion affects
only that pariod, or 1 the period of the revision and future
panods if the revsion affects both current and future periods.

Critical sstimates are included in the mpaiment assessment
of imestiment Property, and In e assassment of the
fecoverabila amounts of Capial Work in Progress and the fair
valua of Property. Plant and Equipment. Management has
anereisad its jucgement on e selaction of depreciation rates
and the classfication of financial assets.

Particular
Accounting Policies

1. Revenues

Renvenue compeses the falr vaiua of the consxeration
received of recetvable for the sale of goods and services in
the ordinary course of the group’s activities. Revenue & shoan
net of Goods and Sarvices Tax (If applicable), retums, rebates
and discounts. The group racognises revenus when the
amount of revenue can be reliably measurad. itis probable
that future economic benefts will flow to the company and
when specific criteria have been mat for each of the group’s
activities. Revenues consist manly of lnding chasgas,

car perking fees, larminal and laased land rentaks and
concessions. Lease incoma & recognisad on a straght-line
basis over the tam of tha lease.

2. Trade and Other Receivables

Tragie and ohar recelvables are stated at net realsablo
value after provision for doubtful debts.

3. Taxation

ncome lax experss

hoome tax on profits for the period conprses curent tax,
tefeed taxand any adudment for tax payatie N previous
perods. Income tax s recognised in prafit of bes as tax epense
ooopt when it reiates to items credited drectly to equity, in which
case it 5 recorded 1 ofhar comprehensive income

b 8
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Current fax

Curent tax is the expected tax payable on the income for the
period based on tax rates and tac laws which are enacted or
substantivaly enacted by the raporting date.

Deferred tax

Defarred tax arises by providing for emporary diferences
between the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities for
financial reporting purposes and the equivdlent amounts
used for & purposes

Deferred tax assets and Ealilities are measured at the tax
raes thit are expected to apply to the periods when the
assets of Kabilities giving rise to them are reafised or settld.

Deferrad tax assels, ncluting these relgted 1o the tax effact
of inoome tax keses avatlatie to be carred forward are
recognised only to the exteat that It is protable that future
table profits will be awilabla against which the daducble
Bemporary diferances or unused tax losses can be realised.
Doferred tax assels are reviewad each reporting date and ara
reduced 10 the axtent that it & no fonger probable that the
related tax beneft will be maised.

4. Cash Flow Statement

The follovang defnitions have bean used for the prepasation
of the Satement of Cash Fows:

Cash and Cash equvalents: Cash and cash aquivalents are
cash in hand, deposits hald at cal with banks, ather short-
e highly liquid invesments with original maturities of three
months or kass that are readily convertbie to known amounts
of cash and which are subjact to an Insignificant risk of
changss in viluz.

Operating activites: Transactions and other events that ae
not imesting or financing activities.

Investing activiles: Activiies refaling to the acquisition, hoiding
and disposal of non-curent assets and of ivestments, such
a seourities, nat falling within the defintion of cach

Financing acivities; Actrties which result in changes in the
size and composition of the capital structure of the Group,
Doth equity and dabt nat talling within the definition of cash

5. Valuation of Property,
Plant And Equipment

FProperty, plant and equipment

Rems of property, plant and equpmant are intially recognisad
@ cost. As well as the purchase price, cost includes diectly
atributable costs. Subseguant 1o Initial recognition, tand
and 'and improvernest and airport infrastnucture and
bulidings are carmied at falr vakie less accumulated
depreciaton and accumulated impairment losses. Captal
work in progress is cartied at cost and transferred to another
category as assets are compieted. Other assats are recorded
& cost less acoumutated depreciation and accumuiated
impaimmet losses.

Ay revaluation increment s credited 1o tha revaliation
reserva and inchudad in other camprehenshe meome,
expapt I the extant that it reversed a pravious decrease of
tha same asset previously recognisad within net profit in

the statement of comprehensiva income, m which case the
nerease is recognsad within net profit n the statemert of
comprehensive income.

Each year the difference between depreciation based on the
revalued carrying amourt of the assat chargad to the incoma
statement, and the depreciation basad on the eriging cost is
transferad from the revaluation resene to retanad eamings.

Property, plant and equipment comprises arfield and other
hirastiucture, car parks, bullkdings and equipment.

Assets under construction
The cost of assets under construction is recorded at ncumed
cost as & baknoa date,

Disposal of property plant and equipment

Vihen an tem of plant proparty snd equipment Is disposed
of any gain of kass i recognised in the proft or loss cacuated
4 the dferance batween the sale prioz and the carrying
vahie of the asset.

Cyclical maintenance upgrades

Significant expenditure involving renewal of rurway surface
components is capialisad and subject to depreciaton at the
appropriate rales.

6. Investment Property

Investment property, which is property hald to eam rentais
and/or for capitat apprecition, is mitally recagnised at cost,
including transaction costs. Costs indude all expenditra
relating to infrastructure development and construction.
Ivestment property is depreciatad using he cost modal
allowed under NZ 1AS 40 Investmant proparties includs

#l aspects of the business park davelcpment adiacent fo
the drport

7. Depreciation

Depreciation i charged on a straight-line basis i wiite off the
cost of viiue of property plant and equipment and investmint
property over ther axpected econamic lives.

The principal depreciation rtes are a folows:

Arfield nfrastruchure: Base 0.71" to 5,56*
Surface 667" 1 10.00*
Business Park Infrastrucaure 000" 10.00*
Bulldings 250" © 10.00*
Pant & Equipmant 290" 1 40.00*
Car Park & Roading 1.67" to 5.00"
Fencing 500" 0 15.00"
Lighting 400" v 10.00
Furntura & Filtings 10.00*
Office Equipment 30.00*
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8. Intangibles

Intangibies comprise computer software hat is not an ntagral
part of the refated hardware. This software has either been
purchased or developed internally and is inttially recorded at
cost. Subsequent costs are induded in e software's camying
amaunt or feeogrised as a separde asset. as appropriate,
only when it is probable that future economic bendfits
assockted with tha item wal fiow o the Group and the cost of
the ftem can ba measured refiably, The costs of mantaining
the software are charged to profit of loss, Software: i
amortisad over three years using the sraght-ine methiod,

9. Financial Instruments Recognition
and Measurement

Financial assats

The Group classifies its financial assets in the fodowing
categonies: fair value through profit of loss (FYTPLY, fair

walug through ather camprehensive mcome (FVTOCI) or
amortisad cost, The dassificabon dapends on he Group's
busiress madel Sor managing the financiat asset and the
confractud cash flow characteristics of the financil asst.
Managament determines the dassification of its investments
a mitial recognition and re-avsluates this designation at aveary
reporting dale. At batance date, the Group hed fnancial assets
dlassified only as amertised cost.

Amartised cost

Fnancal assets at amortisad cost have contractual erms
that give rise to cash flow on specifiad dales that are solely
principal and nferest and are hekd within a business model
whose obfective is 1o hold assets in order 1o colfect those
confractud cash flows

The Group's amortised cost finencial assets comprisa of
cash and cash aquividants and accounts receivabiia

Purchases and sakes of financial assets are recognised

ol trade date ~ the date on which the Group commits to
purchase or sell the assat. Ainancial assets are initially
recognised at far valua plus transaction costs for all financil
assats not camed ot falr valua trough profit o loss, Financial
assels camiad at falr valua through profit of loss are Initjatly
tecognisad at far valua and transaction casts are expansed.

ARer initial recognition, amortsed cost financial assess are
camied & amortised cost using the effective interest mathod,
less imparment.

Fnancal assets are derecognised when the rigts to recaive
cash flows from the investments have expirad or hava been
ransenad and the Group has transkerred substantially all the
tigks and rewerds of ownershp.

- g
Non-derivitive financal ksbilties are recognised & amorised
008t comprising origing et less principal payments and
amartisation. Trada payables and borrowings are dassifiad as
financal abilties,

10. Impairment Testing of Assets

4 each raporting date; the Group reviews the carrying values
of its assets 1o desermine whether there is any mdication
that those assets have been Impaired. ¥ such an indication
exists, the recoverablie amount of the asset, being e higher
of the assat's falr valua less costs to sell and vaue I use,

Is compared to fie asset’s camying value. Any excess of

the asset's carmying value over its recoverable amount &
expensed 10 profit o loss.

11. GST

All amounts are shown excusie of Goads and Services Tax
(GST). except for raceivables and payablas that are stated
nclusive of GST

12. Leases
The Graup only has operating leases.

Reral Incoma from operaling leasas is recognised on a
straight-ling basis over the term of the relevant lease.

Operating lease payments are recognised as an aupanse on
astralght-kng basis over the lease term. Contingent rentals
afising under operating leases are recognised as an expense
In the period i which they are incurmed. In the avent that
lease incentives are received to enter info operating leasss,
such Incertives are recognised as a liability. The agoregate
baneft of incentives is recognised as a feduction of rental
expense on i stralght-line basis.

13. Changes in Accounting Policies

The Group has adopted “NZ IFRS 9 Financial Instrumants® for
tha year anded 31 March 2019, The impact of this standard
was to change the dassificaton of financial assets. Due to the
Group's business moded for managing financial assats and the
contractual nature of the assets there has been no change to
tha recogrition and measurement of the assess. The assels
previously classfied as loans and receivables camied &
amortised cost are now In the amortised cost category.

The Group has aiso adopied "NZ FRS 15 Revenue from
Contracts with customers”. Due to the nature of the Geoup's
revenua, this standard has not had a material impact on the
Group’s fnancial statements

There have bean no other changes in accounting policies.
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Notes to the accounts

for the year ended 30 June 2018

1. Operating Revenues

Atation Income Incluges all revanue from landing charges, aircraft parking, concessions, airfield and terminal rentals.
Carparking indudes all income from the short term, desly and long stay car parks. Business park ravenus includes af rental
ncome from tenants occupying sites on the business park investment property. Other revenus includes advertisng, use of

the conference fadlities and other revenue. All revenue is net of discounts and rebates,

2. Operating Expenses

019 2018
S S
Audit Fees - audit of financial staterments 30,879 28,809
Directors Fees 105,000 105,000
Lease of Land 34,000 34,000
Employes Benefiis 1,106,536 733527
Other Operating Expensas 2,475,304 2140329
3751719 3041665
3. Taxation
am9 2018
S $
A. Current Year Reconctiiation
Profit Before Taxation 2,253,996 2,140,708
Prima Facie Taxation at 28% 631,119 500 398
Adjusted for the tax effect of!
Depredation on revalued assets 96,373 96,372
Non deductile expenses 30,384 (38)
Prior Years {over)/under provision = S
ncome tax expense 757 877 695,733
n =
Cument Tax 801,398 827,598
Defered Tax (43,522 (131,865
757877 695733
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B. Taxation Payable/(Receivable)

Balance at 1 July 307,764 942,870
Teming Tax (paid)/refunded (294 404) ©942,870)
13.360 {0
Cument Tax Payabie 801,398 827 598
Provdsional Tax pald {569,084) £519,834)
RWT paid on interest 59 =
Balance at 30 June 245733 307,764
C. Imputation Credit Account
Irputation Credits canied forward 2,662,304 1,398,733
Decreass arising from tax refunded during the year {22,890 1,461,285
Increase arlsing from tax paid during the year 885,533 -
Applied to Dividends paid 224,774) (197.714)
Balance at 30 June 3300173 2.662.304
D. Deferred Tax Reconciliation
Opening balance 3,577,996 3.806,233
Deferred tax axpensa (139,895) {228,237)
Revaluaton of PPAE 1,049,077 -
Closing balance 4,487,178 3,577.996
Reconaiiation of Defarred Tax Expense
Reaclassified from current tax
Credited to tax expense (43,522 {131,865)
Chargad to othar comprehensive income (1,145,450 36,372)
(1.188971) {228,237)
E. Deferred Tax Analysis
Holiday Pay 9,736) 6,725)
¥rpairment Prowsion (194,992 (194,992
Prowision for doubtfud debt 60 (14,619
Intangibées (47) (47)
ncome in Advance (332,809 356,409)
Runway Refurbishment 446157 506,762
Capitalised interest 34,30 -
Ravaluaten of PPAE 3,080,732 2,128,028
Asset Base and Depreciation Differences 1,463,512 1,515,997
4487178 3,577.995
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4. Trade and Other Receivables

an9 2018
$ $
docounts Recetvable 503,971 572,916
Provision for doubtful debts > {b2.428)
Prepayments 261,933 276,965
GST Recelvabie 269,989 163,456
1,0353893 950,809

5. Equity
shares on issue 2019 2018
Ordnary shares 1004 13,789,155 13,789,155
Revaluation Reseive 11,420,801 8.724.320

Al shares have equal voting rights and share equally In diidends and surpluses on winding up
Al shares are fully paid and have no par value.

On 01 Decermber 2018 a dadand of $675.63 cents per share was paid to the holders of ordinary shares
2017 $684.26 cents per share).

The revaluation reserve arfsas on the revaiuation of property, plant and equipment. When revalued property, plant and
equpment is sold, the partion of the revaluation reserve that relates to that assat is transferred directly to retained earnings

6. Borrowings

The company has a tiexible fadility up o $1.5m, (2018 up 1o $2.5m), and a term facility stappng up from $14.5m at 30 June
2019 0 $19.5m on 1 January 2020 (2018: $14.7m) avallabie from the ANZ Bank. At bakncs dale the term facility was drawn
down to $10,688,561.73 (2018: $4,026,732) and the Flexible Faclity wes drawn down to $375,738,15 2018: $0)

The average Inferest rate on the &rm faclity was 327% p.a (2018: 3.52% p.a). The tarm facility matures on 30 November 2021,
The current interest rate on the Flaxi Fadility s 4.89% (2018: 4.8%%). The Fexi Faciity matwres on 30 November 2021.
The faciifes are sacured by 8 General Security Agresment.
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7. Trade and Other Payables

2019 2018
$ S
General - Trade 420,943 452,858
- Capital Expanditure 1,336,642 836,839
Rentals In Advance 89,334 105,200
Income Tax Payable 245733 307,764
2,002,652 1,702,702
Reantals in acvance due beyond twelve months tolals $1,096,022 (2018: $1,180,264).
8. Property, Plant and Equipment
Land Airport Capital
& Land Infrastructure Other Wark in
Impeovements & Buildings assats Progress Total
At 30 Jure 2018
Fair Valuz 5,567,362 26,831,500 1,316,791 5,289,250 39,014,912
Aee dep 12,696 3133117 955,776 0 4,102,180
5,604,666 23,697,792 361 015 5,299,250 3912723
Opening net book vake 5,554 666 23,607,792 31015 5290250 NN2723
Additions 0 345,185 40,788 9,381371 9,767,344
Disposals 0 0 0 0 0
Revaluation 246,661 3,746,703 0 0 3,893,364
Depreciation 966 1,277,308 11,242 0 1,389515
Transfers 0 7.381,022 348248 (7,695,684) 33685
Cosing net book value 5,800,362 33,893 303 638,809 6,985,037 47,317,601
At 30 June 2019
Fair Value 5,800,362 33,603,393 1,706,788 6,985,037 48,384,580
Ace dep (] (V)] 1,066,979 0 1,066,979
5,800,362 33,893,393 638,809 6485037 47,317,601

As at 30 Jure 2019 the Land was valued by an independent valuar - Logan Stone Limited and the Airpert Infrastructure
& Bulldngs were valuad by an Indepandant valuar - Pater Seed Lid .

The valuations were on the basis of cument fair value. Logan Stone Limited determined tha fair value by drect reference
10 racent market transactions on arm's length tarms for properties comparabie In size and location, taking into account the
highest and best usa for the land, In particular the proximity of the car park land 10 the alrport tarminal. Ths is fevel 2 on

the fair value hierarchy - see note 14.

Peter Seed Ltd usad a discounted cashflow model as there was an absence of sale of siméar progerties and this is
industry practioz. This discounted cashflow was based on future forecast mcome and expenditure for the aeronautical
and non-aeronaltical assets. This i leved 3 on the fair value hierarchy - see note 14.

At reporting date, If passenger growth forecasts used in the Discounted Cash Flow were +2% oe -1% with a other variabies
held constant, It wouki increase /idecrease) the value of Propesty Plant and Equipment by $3.6mAS1.6m)

Additions subsequent to the revaluation are camied at cost.

As shown In the Statement of Changes in Equity there was an additional depreciation charge of $344,188 (2018: $344,187)

as a result of the prior year revahations on the Alrport Infrastiucture & Buldings assats.
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9. Investment Property

Land  Business Park Capital
&land  infrastructure Work n
Improvements & Buildings Progress Total
At 30 June 2018
Cost 2977203 2875214 145270 5,997,687
Accumuiated depreciation and impatrmeant 228,887 1,233,483 - 1,462,370
2,748,316 1641731 145270 4,535317
Opening net baok value 2748316 1.641.731 145,270 4535317
Aditions - - 132 132
Disposals . . ’ .
Depreciation 33619 125511 - 159,130
Transfers - - - -
Closing net book value 2,714 687 1,516,220 145402 4376319
At 30 Jure 2018
Cost 2,977,203 2,875,214 145,402 5,997,819
Accumutated depreciation and impaimment 262 506 1,368,994 . 1,621,600
2,714 697 1,516,220 145402 4,376,319

The company s developing a business park complax on the surpius airfieid land. The development commenced in 2013,
The mndtial tenant of the business park has prepaid its rentais for the 21 year term of the lease. This Income s being
recognised over the temn of the lease.

As at 30 June 2019 the company has considered whether any new indicators of impairment exist. The recoverable amount
of tha land has been considered separately for the developed and the undaveiopad tand.

The recoverable amount of the developed land has been calculated by undertaking a lease capitalisation calculation on
the net lease income from edsting tenants, The recoverable amount of the prapald lease has been calcutated by undertaking
a tiscounted cash flow calculation based on the leasa incame for the remainder of the lease tarm.

The recoverable amount of the undeveloped land has been valued by a third party vakuation expert, Logan Stone Ltd. as
at 30 June 2019, based on a value per square metre derived from knowledge of racent market transactions.

Vinen the astimated value of the developed land and the valuation of the undevelopad land is combined, the recoverable
value Is greater than the net book value per the financial statements. Therefore, no impairment exists.

The Company will cortinue to monitor the ongaing financia performance of tha business park at each reporting date
to confim whether previous impairments have reversed or further Imparments should be recogrised,

10. Reconciliation of Net Profit After Income Tax
to Net Cashflows from Operating Activities

219 2m8
§ $
Cperating Profit/(Loss) After Taxation 1.496,120 1444 975
Aad/Less:
Non Cash ftems
- Depreciation 1.550,531 1,396,041
- Dountful debts 52,426 52,212
- Daferred Tax 143,522) (131,865)
Interest Costs Capitafised {90,322) =
Changes in Trade and Cther Recaivables 146,187) (234,346)
Changes in Payabies and Income In Advancs (193,623) {839.225)
Net Cash flows from Operating Activities 2620571 1,687,793
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11. Commitments
Operating commitments:

As at 30 June 2019 the company had 2.5 years remaining of a new fiva year contract with a provider of rescue fire,
grounds malntanance and security services at $7%9,000 per annum. This contradt runs untd 31 Decerrber 2021.
The company has entered into a lease agreement to Jsase land as part of the runway extansion for & tarm of 35 years
axpiring on 30 April 2045 with angaing rights of ranewal,

2019 2018

S $

No longer than 1 year 34,000 34,000
1 -5 years 136,000 136,000
Longar than 5 years 697,000 731,000
867,000 901,000

Capital commitments:

As at 30 June 2019 the Compary is confractually committed fo capRal expenditure totalling 89,789,229, with $9,061,395 of this
relating o the serminal redeveibpment projact and the balance associated with masterpian and carpark deveiopment projacts.

In the pricr year & 30 June 2018 the Company had a contractual commitment of $11,625,845 in respect of the terminal
fedevaiopmant project.

For urther information on the new rminal expansion project reer 1o the Chalrmans and Chiet Exscutives repart,

12. Contingencies
There are no known contingent lisbilites (2018: Nilj,

13. Transactions with Related Parties

Hawke's Bay Alrport Ltd is owned by Napler City Council, Hastings District Council and the Crown. The company enters inio
numerous transactions with government departments, Crown antities, State-owned enterprises and other enflties controlled
by the Crown and pays rates to the Napier City Council.

These transactions are not separately disciosad where they:

* Are conducted on an anm'’s length basls;

¢ Rasult from the nomal dealings of the parties: and

®  Meet the dafinition of related party transactions only becausa of the relationship between the parties being subject
to commaon control or significant nfluence by the Crown

Hawke's Bay Airport Limited incorporated a 100% owned subsidiary, Hawke's Bay Airport Construction Limited on

15 March 2019,

Hawke's Bay Arport Construction Limited is the company that contracts to Hawka's Bay Aiport Limited to undertake

the construction management of the airport terminal redevelopment project.

Al transactions between Hawke's Bay Aport Limted and Hewke's Bay Arport Construction Limited are aliminated

on consolidation so there are no related party Yansactions to disciose at Group kevel,

Ameunts paid 1o key menagement personnel (Chief Executive, Chief Finandaf Officer, and the Directors) during the year
vere $678,247 (2018: $451,218)

b 8
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14. Financial Instruments

The Company is party to financial instruments as part of its normal day to day operations.
The main financsal Irstruments are:

o (Cash and cash equivalents

*  Accounts recevabla

* Tiade payables

*  Bomowings
The Company has no off balance sheet financial instruments.

Fair Value of Financial Instruments

All financial assets and financial liabiities camying amounts are a reasonable approximation of far value.
The fair vidue estimates were determined by the following methodologies and assuemplions.

CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS: The reported amounts approximate fair value.

ACCOUNTS RECENABLES: The reportad amount approximates fair value because thay are assassed for impaimment
and all amounts are recenvable within thrae months of balance date,
TRALE PAYABLES: The reported amount approximates fair valua because they are payable In the short term.

BORROWINGS: The reported amounts approdmade fair value because they are at mariet interest rates,

Fair value estimation

Assets and liabiities are recorded at fair vatue are valued according o the fair value hierarchy
as folows:

LEVEL 1- Quotad prices {unadusted) i active markets for dentical assets or liabifties,

LEVEL 2 - Inputs rather than quoted prices included in level 1 that are obsarvable for the asset or liabdity, either directly
{that is, as prices) or Indrectly (that is, darived from prices.)

LEVEL 3 - Inputs for the asset or liabifity that are ot based on observable market data (that is, unobsarvable inputs).

15. Events Subsequent to Balance Date

On Wadnasday 25 September 2019 Jetstar annaunced that it would be ceasing Regional Turboprop air Senvioss across
reglonal New Zealand from 30 November 2019 meaning Jetstar will cease its current Auckland — Hawkes Bay fights from
that date.

Jetstar's decison to leave the regional market represents a reduction in seat capacily however not necessarily a drop in
passenger demand noting that the competitive element introduced by Jetstar stimutated some of the extra damand by
Introducing elasticity in air fares.

The announcament creates some material uncertainty around the future value of the group’s Property, Plant and Equipment
as passenger numbers are a significant input into the discounted cash flow mode! as detailed In note 8,

The group estimates that due to a change n significant inputs the potential future impact on the Net Book Valus of Propesty,
Plant and Equipment is a decrease in the range of $0.95m to $3.6m.

The above announcement has meant that the financial statements that were issued to the sharaholders on 25 Septamber
2019 were withdrawn in order that the above disclosure could be prepared. Dug to the timing of the anouncement and the
process required to be undertaken to draft the above disclosure, the updated financial statements have not been approved
by the directors until after 30 Saptember 2010 which Is a technical breach of the Local Government Act 2002

There have been no other events subsequent to balance date. (2018: The company received approval for a major transaction
from all of its shareholders anabling a further increasa to the terminal expansion of $4.5m).
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Independent

@ bakertilly

STAPLES RODWAY

Auaitors Report

TO THE READERS OF HAWKES BAY ARPORT LIMITED'S GROUP FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS AND PERFORMANCE INFORMATION FOR THE YEAR ENDED 30 JUNE 2019

The Auditor-General ls the auditor of Hawkes Bay
Arport Limited group fhe group). The Auditor-Gengral
has apponted me, Philip Pinckney, using the staff and
resources of Baker Tilly Staples Rodway Audt Limited,
to carry out the avdt of the financial statements and
the performance information of the group on his behad,

Opinion

We have audited;

* the firancial statements of the group on pages 41 to 54,
that comyprise the statement of financial position as at
30 June 2019, tha statament of comprehensive income,
statemant of changes In equity and statemant of cash
flows for the year anded on that date and the notes to
the financial statements that include accounting policies
and other explanatory information; and

o the performance information of the group on page 40.

In our apwion;
o the financial statements of the group on pages 41 to b4
- present fairy, in all matenal respects:
- Izs financial pasition as at 30 June 2019; and

- Its financiai parformance and cash flows for
the year then ended; and

comply with generally accepled accounting practice
In New Zealand in accordance with New Zegiand
equivalents to nternational Financial Reporting
Standards Reduced Disclosure Regime; and

* the performance information of the group on page 40
presants fairly, In all materia respacts, the groups
actual parformance comparad against the performance
targets and other maasures by which perfarmance was
judged in relation to the group’s cbjedives, for the year
ended 30 June 2019

Our audt was completed on 3 October 2019,
This is the date &t which our opinon is expressad.

The basis for our opinion is expiained below, and we
draw your attention to other matiers. In addition, we
outiine the responsibiities of the Beard of Directors and
our responsitilities refating to the financial statements
and the parformance information, we commant on other
information, and we explain our indepandence.

Replacement financial
statements, statement of
service performance, and
audit report

Without modifying cur opinion, we draw aftention to the

fact that the finendial statements on pages 41 1o 54 and

the statement of servios perfarmance on page 40 replace
the previously ssued financial statements and statement

of sarvice performance dated 24 September 2019 The
previous financial statements and statement of senvice
perfomance have bagn replaced because, on 25 September
2019, Jatstar announced that it would be ceasng Hawkes
Bay flights from 30 November 2019 creating material
uncertainty around the future value of the group's Property,
Plant and Equipment as passanger numbers are a significant
input into the discounted cash fiow moedel as detafed in note
8. Attention is drawn to nofe 15 on page 54, which outlines
the circumstances in more detail. This audit report replaces
the aurit report Issued an 24 Septamber 2019,

b §
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Basis for our opinion

We carried out our auditin acoordance with the Audtor-
General's Auditing Standards, which Incorporate the
Professional and Ethical Standards and the Intemational
Standards on Auditing (New Zealand) issued by the New
Zealand Auditing and Assurance Standards Board. Our
resporsiiiities under those standards are further desaribed
in the ResponsibiBties of the auditor section of cur report.

We have fulfilled our responsibilities in accordance with
the Aucsitor-General's Auditing Standards.

Vi belleve that the audit evidence we have obtained is
sufficient and appropriate to provide a bass for our opinion.

Responsibilities of the
Board of Directors for the
financial statements and the
performance information

The Board of Directors s responsible on behalf of the
group for prepanng financial statements and performance
information that are fairly presented and that comply with
generally accepted accounting practice in New Zealand.

The Board of Directors s responsible for such internal
control as It datermines is necessary t enable It fo
prepare financial stiements and performance mformation
that are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or amoc

In prepaning the finandial statements and the performance
nformation, the Board of Directors is respansible on behalf
of the group for assessing the group's ability to continue as
a going conoam. The Board of Directors is alsa raspansble
for disclosing, as applicable, matters related to going
concem and using the gaing concem basis of accounting,
unkass there Is an infention to liquidate the group of to cease
oparations, of there is no realistic alternative but to do 50.

The Board of Orectors’ responsibrities artse from the Local
Govemment Act 2002

L

Responsibilities of the
auditor for the audit of the
financial statements and the
performance information

Qur objectives ar to oblain reasonable assurance about
whethar the finandal statements and the parfarmance
Information, as & whole, are free from material
misstaterment, whether due to fraud or error, and to ssue
an auditor’s report that includes our opinion.

Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is
not a quarantee that an audt carried out In accordance with
the Auditor-General's Auditing Standards will always detect
a matarial misstatemant when it exists. Misstatements are
differencas or omissions of amounts or dscloswres, and
can aisa from fraud or emor. Misstatements are considered
material ¥, indhidually or in the aggregate, they coudd
reasonably be expected to influznce the dacisions of readers
taken on the basis of these financial statements and the
performance mformation.

For the performance information, cur procedures were
limited to checking that the information agreed to the
group’s statemant of intent.

We did not evaluate the sacurity and controls over the
electronic publication of the financial staterments and the
performance mformation.

As part of an audl in accordance with the Auditor-General's
Aaditing Standards, we exsrtise professional judgement and
maintain professional sceptcism throughout the audt. Also:

o We identify and assess the risks of material
misstatement of the firancial statements and the
performance information, whether due to fraud or emor,
dasign and parform audit procedures responsive to
those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is suffident
and appmpriate to provide a basss for our opirion. The
risk of not detacting a matenal misstatement resulting
from fraud is higher than for one resudting from error,
as fraud rray Involve eollusion, forgery, infentional
omissions, misrepresentations, or the override of the
ntemal control.

o We obtain an understanding of intemal controf relevant
1o the auwdit i order 1o dasign audt procadures that am
appropriate In the circumstances but nok for the purpese
of expressing an opinion on the effactivenass of the
group's Intemal control,
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® We evaluate the appropriataness of accounting policies
usad and the reasonableness of accounting estmates
and refated disdosures mada by the Board of Directoes.

* \We evaluate the appropriateness of the reported
performance information within the group's frameverk
for reporting parformance.

o We concluds on the appropriatenass of the 1se of the
going concern basis of accounting by the Beard of
Directors and, based on the audit evidence obtained,
whether a material uncartainty exdsts related to events
or condtions that may cast signficant doubt on the
group's abdity to continue as a going concam. i we
concluda that a material uncertainty axists. we are
tequired to draw attenticn in our auditor's report to
the related disclosures in the financial statements
and the performance Infammation o, if such disciosures
are inadequate, to moddy our opinion. Our conclusions
are hased on the audit evidence obtained up b the
date of cur atxdfor's report. However, future events or
conditions may causa the group to cease to contnue
as a going concenm.

* Ve evaluate the overall presantation, structure and
content of the financial statements and the perfomanca
niomation, indudng the dsclosures, and whether the
financial statements and the performance information
represent the underlying transactions and events in a
manner that achieves fair prasantation,

We communicate with the Board of Directors regasding,
among othar matters, the planned scope and timing of the
audit and significant audt findings, including any significant
deficiencies in inernal control that we identdy in owr audt,

Our responsibilities arise from the Public Audit Act 2001.

Other Information

The Board of Directors is respongble for the other
mformation. The other information comprisas the information
Included cn pages 1 to 39, but does not include the finandat
staternents and performance infarmation, and our auddor's
report thereon.

Our opinion on the financial statermants and the parformance
information doas nat cover the ather information and we

do not express any form of audt opinion or assurance
conclusion thereon,

In connaction with our audit of the financial statements and
the performance information, our responsibility Is to read
the othes information. In doing so, we consider whether

the other information is materially inconsistent with the
financial statements and the parformance irformation or our
knowiedge obtained In the awdit, or otherwise appears to be
matarially misstated. If, based on our work, we conclide that
thera is a material misstatenent of this other Information,
we are required fo report that fact, We bave nothing to rsport
In this regard.

Independence

Ve are Independent of the group In accordance with
the independance requiremants of the Auditor-General’s
Auditing Standards, which Incorporata the independance
requirements of Professional and Ethical Standard 1
{Revisad): Code of Ethics for Assusance Practitoners
Issuad by the New Zealand Auditing and Asstrance
Standards Board.

Othar than the audt, we have no refationship with,
or interests In, tha group.

Phifip Pinckney
Baker Tilly Staples Rodway Audit Limited

On bahatf of the Auditor-General
Hastings, New Zealand

b 8
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Part 1 Introduction

1. Role of the Committee & Rural Community Board Register of Delegations

This Committee & Rural Community Board Register of Delegations (the Register) has been adopted by the Hastings
District Council (Council) to define its governance relationships and responsibilities.

2. Philosophy of Council Regarding Delegations

Council believes it is essential, in the interests of good management and effective administration, to encourage the
delegation of decision making to the most appropriate level of competence. This should ensure best use of the
abilities of elected representatives, minimise the cost of material, technical and financial resources and enable
efficient/effective consideration and decision-making.

Authority and responsibility go together. Those with responsibility for a task or function should always have the
authority to carry it out effectively. Those with authority should always be responsible for its wise use. Delegations
will not remove from the Council and management the ultimate accountability for the affairs of Council.

It is the statutory function of Council to lead and guide the good management of Hastings District. Council achieves
this by determining primary goals and objectives and setting strategies and policies for the achievement of these
objectives through the considered use of committees and the appointment of a Chief Executive.

Officers through delegation from the Chief Executive contribute to strategy and policy formulation, implementation
and administration to provide and manage the infrastructures and services on which Hastings District is based.

In accordance with Section 39(c) of the Local Government Act 2002, the Council must maintain a clear separation
between regulatory and service delivery functions. The management structure must also reflect this separation. The
delegations to both committees and staff have been written to coincide with this statutory imperative.

A power to hear evidence or consider a proposal is not a delegation and is not therefore generally included in this
Register. This Register has been prepared on the basis that all committees and subcommittees have authority to
hear any matter within their jurisdiction and decide the matter or submit a report or recommendation to a higher
authority unless that is prohibited by law.

3. Characteristics of Delegations

Council does not lose the function, power or duty by delegation and may exercise this concurrently with those to
whom it has granted a delegation (the Delegate).

The Delegate, while having the authority to make a decision under delegation, has the right not to exercise that
delegation and therefore not make a decision. In such instances, the Delegate should refer the matter to the
delegator.

Schedule 7, clause 30(6) of the Local Government Act 2002 makes clear that a local authority or committee is not
able to rescind or amend a decision made under a delegation. The Council would be bound by the decision to the
extent that the decision had already become binding on the Council by the operation of law and could not be
reversed.
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4. Functions that Council Cannot Delegate

Under the Local Government Act, Council can delegate all statutory powers other than the following:
a) The power to make a rate; or

b) The power to make a bylaw; or

c) The power to borrow money, or purchase or dispose of assets, other than in accordance with the Long-Term
Plan; or

d) The power to adopt a Long-Term Plan, Annual Plan or Annual Report; or
e) The power to appoint a Chief Executive; or

f)  The power to adopt policies required to be adopted and consulted on under the Local Government Act in
association with the Long-Term Plan or developed for the purpose of the Local Governance Statement; or

g) The power to adopt a remuneration and employment policy.

5. Delegation to Officers

Council can only delegate certain powers to officers. Delegations to the Chief Executive are contained in a separate
Register (Register of Delegations to the Chief Executive). Staff members receive their delegations from the Chief
Executive. These delegations are contained in separate delegations registers including the Statutory Delegations
Register.

6. Sub-delegation

Every committee may further delegate any power granted to them in this Register or otherwise by the Council
either generally or specifically, and may impose any term or condition upon that sub-delegation.

7. Reporting Decisions

A Delegate need not generally report decisions to the person or body that granted the delegation, except that all

tenders accepted under delegated authority are to be reported by the Delegate (in this case either a Department
Manager, the Management Team, or a Standing Committee) to the next higher level of authority (either the Chief
Executive via the Management Team, Standing Committee or Council) at the earliest opportunity.

8. Term of Delegation

Unless any delegation is expressed to be for a definable term, it shall continue until revoked by the delegator or
Council, or withdrawn in any way by operation of law.

9. Policy and Delegated Decision Making

In reaching a decision under delegated authority full regard must be had to both:
a) any Council policy applying to an issue; and

b) all relevant facts applying to the case.

Should any Delegate, having considered all the facts of the case, be unable to make a decision which complies with
Council policy on any matter, the correct action is then to refer the matter to Council.
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10. Amendments to this Register

This Register shall be maintained by the Manager, Democracy and Governance Services who shall amend it in
accordance with:

a) Anyinstruction to that effect given by the Council; or

b) Any need for typographical, grammatical or other minor amendment where the intention of the Council in the
matter of a delegation is not altered.

This Register will be revised after each Triennial Election. This process will be initiated by the Manager, Democracy
and Governance Services.

11. Council Committee Principles

Council Committees will be assigned responsibility and operate in a way that reinforces the wholeness of the
Council’s function and does not interfere with the delegation from the Council to the Chief Executive.

a) Council Committees will ordinarily assist Council to carry out its governance function by preparing policy
alternatives and implications for Council deliberation. They should not extend their work into operational areas
helping or advising the Chief Executive and staff. Unless specifically delegated authority to do so, Council
Committees may not instruct the Chief Executive and staff beyond reasonable requests for information and
advice. If, in the Chief Executive’s opinion, meeting such requests would consume a material amount of staff
time or funds outside those budgeted, or would be disruptive, the Chief Executive may refer the request to
Council.

b) Council Committees may not speak for the Council except when formally given such authority for specific and
time-limited purposes. Expectations and authority will be carefully stated in order not to conflict with authority
delegated to the Chief Executive.

c) Asthe Chief Executive works for the Council as a whole, s/he will not be required to obtain the approval of a
Committee before taking an executive action. For the avoidance of doubt no Chair or member of a Committee
has or may exercise any executive power unless expressly delegated such power by Council.

d) Council Committees are to avoid over-identification with Council parts rather than the whole. A Council
Committee that has helped the Council create policy on some matter will not be used to monitor Council
performance on that same matter.

e) While the Council may delegate authority to committees, including the monitoring of performance within their
areas of responsibility, the Council remains at all times the superior body.

f)  This policy applies to any group that is formed by Council action whether or not it is called a committee and
regardless of whether the group includes Council Members. It does not apply to Committees formed under the
authority of the Chief Executive.

12. Committees

The law relating to Committees is generally found in Schedule 7 of the Local Government Act 2002. Unless
otherwise stated, references to clauses are references to clauses in Schedule 7.

While a Committee may include persons other than elected members (other than under Section 12 Fencing of
Swimming Pools Act 1987), it must include at least one elected member. Council Officers may only be appointed to
subcommittees (Clause 31(4)). The minimum number of members of a committee is three, (Clause 31(6)(a)) with a
quorum being at least two, including at least one elected member, (Clause 23(3)(b)). The Council will determine the
quorum.

A Committee may delegate any of its functions, duties, or powers to a Subcommittee, subject to any conditions,
limitations, or prohibitions imposed by Council or the Committee.

A Subcommittee may comprise Elected Members or staff (Clause 31(4)(b)) or other persons but the minimum
number of members of the subcommittee is two (Clause 31(6)(b)).
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13. Role of the Mayor

The role of the Mayor is to provide leadership to the other elected members of Council and the Hastings District
Community. The Mayor leads the development of our Long Term Plan and Annual Plan, policies and budgets.

The Mayor is a member of all committees of Council, may establish committees and may appoint chairs of
committees.

14. Hastings District Rural Community Board

The Rural Community Board is a separate entity to Council and is not a committee of Council.

Section 51 of the Local Government Act 2002 states that a community board is:

a) Anunincorporated body.

b) Not a local authority.

c) Notacommittee of the relevant territorial authority.

The role of the Rural Community Board is set out in Section 52 of the Local Government Act (and is set out in the

section of this Register relating to the Rural Community Board). The delegation of powers by Council to the Rural
Community Board is provided for in Clause 32.

15. Appointment of Committees

Section 41A of the Local Government Act 2002 gives the Mayor the authority to establish committees and to
appoint the Chair of each of these communities should they wish to do so.

In this Register a ‘Field of Activity’ is a specific activity or function which the Standing Committee or Subcommittee
has responsibility for. ‘Delegated Powers’ define what the Committee or Subcommittee is allowed to do.

Council determines the fields of activities for its Committees and Subcommittees. Committees and Subcommittees
may generally deal with all matters covered by their respective fields of activity for which financial provision has
been made but subject to any conditions set by the Council.

Statutory matters that do not have to be dealt with by Council are delegated to either Committees or
Subcommittees within their respective fields of activity.

Provision for ‘Joint Committees” with other local authorities or public bodies is provided for in Clause 30(1)(b) of
The Act.

Final decisions can be made by Committees and Subcommittees only on those matters where authority to make
decisions has been delegated. All other decisions must be in the form of recommendations to the Council, or, in the
case of Special Committees or Subcommittees, to the parent Committee. Recommendations may extend over any of
the items included in, or similar to, the Committees or Subcommittees fields of activity. Committees can delegate
final decision-making power to Subcommittees, but only in relation to matters within the delegated authority of the
Committee and only subject to any conditions imposed on such a delegation by Council itself (Schedule 7 Clause 32),
or limitations imposed by statute.

While Schedule 7 Clause 30(3) makes it clear that every Committee is “subject in all things to the control of [Council]
and must carry out all general and special directions ...” the Council is not entitled to rescind or amend a decision
made by a Committee exercising a delegated authority to make the decision (Clause 30(6)). However, if it considers
that a Committee has erred the Council could amend the authorities delegated to that Committee.

16. Principles of Council’s Committee Structure

Council’'s Committee structures (as laid out in these delegations) are based on the following governance principles:

1) There should be appropriate separation between the Council’s
e  Strategy and policy development functions,
e Monitoring of finances and operational performance, and
e  Rolein regulatory matters (see 39(c) of the Local Government Act 2002).

2) Other Committees and Subcommittees (to support the main Committees) will focus specifically on key areas
requiring that additional focus.
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17. Ambiguity and Conflict

In the event of ambiguity or conflict between any of the provisions contained in the Delegations Register, resulting
in uncertainty or dispute as to where the authority is held to act in respect of a particular matter, the Chief
Executive will prepare a written report in respect of that uncertainty or dispute and submit the same to the Mayor
(or the Deputy Mayor in the absence of the Mayor) for consideration and determination. The decision of the Mayor
(or Deputy Mayor in the absence of the Mayor) will be final and binding.

If neither the Mayor nor the Deputy Mayor is available the decision of the Chief Executive will be final and binding.

For guidance the committee structure is shown graphically below.

REGULATORY
COUNCIL
District Strategy & Policy Operations & Monitoring
Licensing (whole Council) (whole Council)
Heretaunga Takoto Chief Executive Risk & Rural
COMMITTEES/ Noa Maori Standing Performance Assurance Community
COMMUNITY BOARD Committee Committee Board
Rural
Halls
District Eco Great District Plan Civic &
Development District Communities & Bylaws Administration
SUBCOMMITTEES
JOINT
COMMITTEES
ADVISORY
GROUPS
Delegated Authority Recommendations
Key: Note colour coding for guidance — refer to detailed delegations to make decisions only
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Part 2 Standing Committees

1.

Fields

The pu

Strategy and Policy Committee

of Activity

rpose of the Strategy and Policy Committee is to develop all strategic, policy and planning frameworks for

approval by Council.

Membership (Mayor and 14 Councillors)

e  Chair appointed by Council.

e  Deputy Chair appointed by Council.

° 1

Heretaunga Takoto Noa Maori Standing Committee Member appointed by Council.

e  Chair of the Rural Community Board appointed by Council.

Quorum — 8 members

DELEGATED POWERS

1) Authority to exercise all of Council’s powers, functions and authorities (except where prohibited by law or
otherwise delegated to another committee) in relation to all matters detailed in this delegation.

2) Authority to exercise all of Council’s powers, functions and authorities (except where prohibited by law) at
any time when the Chief Executive certifies in a report that;
a) the matter is of such urgency that it requires to be dealt with, or
b) the matter is required to be dealt with, prior to the next ordinary meeting of the Council.

3) Establish strategic direction to deliver Council Objectives and District Vision.

4)  Establish policies and guidelines for decision making to assist in achieving strategic outcomes.

5) Establish levels of service across Council services in line with strategic goals and priorities.

6) Receive and consider reports from Subcommittees.

7) Develop draft bylaws for adoption by Council.

8) Develop and recommend the financial and infrastructure strategies and budgets for the Long-Term Plan,
Annual Plan and Annual Report.

9) Consider and approve constitutions and any shareholder agreements for Council Controlled Organisations
and other organisations that Council has an interest in.

10) Develop the Rating Policy for recommendation to Council for adoption.

11) Develop Funding Policies for recommendation to Council for adoption.

12) Delegations of powers to sub-committee(s) if so established.

13) Approve the purchase of and disposal of land (If included in the Long Term Plan).

14) Making submissions on behalf of Council to proposals by other organisations/authorities (Local and
Regional).

15) Conversion of terminating leases to renewable leases and the settlement of terms except in the case of
leases under the Reserves Act.
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2.

Operations and Monitoring Committee

The purpose of the Operations and Monitoring Committee is to ensure consolidated and complete reporting and
monitoring of all financial and non-financial information and performance measures against the Annual Plan, Long-
Term Plan and Council Strategies, Goals and Priorities.

e  (Mayor and 14 Councillors).

e  Chair appointed by Council.

e  Deputy Chair appointed by Council.

e 1 Heretaunga Takoto Noa Maori Standing Committee Member appointed by Council.

DELEGATED POWERS

1)

2)

S e 8 e

11)

12)

13)

14)

15)
16)

Authority to exercise all of Council’s powers, functions and authorities (except where prohibited by law or
otherwise delegated to another committee) in relation to all matters detailed in the Fields of Activity.

Authority to exercise all of Council’s powers, functions and authorities (except where prohibited by law) at
any time when the Chief Executive certifies in a report that;

e the matter is of such urgency that it requires to be dealt with
e the matteris required to be dealt with, prior to the next ordinary meeting of the Council.

Monitor the performance of Council in terms of the organisational targets set in the Long Term Plan and
Annual Plan — both financial and nonfinancial.

Monitor operational performance and benchmarking.
Undertake quarterly financial performance reviews.
Develop the Draft Annual Report and carry forwards.

Monitor and review the performance of Council Controlled Organisations and other organisations that
Council has an interest in.

Monitor and review tender and procurement processes.
Monitor major capital projects.

Recommend to Council on matters concerning project decisions where these are identified as a result of
the committee’s project monitoring responsibilities.

Writing off outstanding accounts for amounts exceeding $6,000 and the remission of fees and charges of a
similar sum.

Settlement of uninsured claims for compensation or damages where the amount exceeds the amounts
delegated to the Chief Executive.

Guarantee loans for third parties such as local recreational organisations provided such guarantees are
within the terms of Council policy.

Authority to exercise the Powers and Remedies of the General Conditions of Contract in respect of the
Principal taking possession of, determining, or carrying out urgent repairs to works covered by the
contract.

Grant of easement or right of way over Council property.

Approve insurance — if significant change to Council’s current policy of insuring all its assets.
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3.

Hearings Committee

Fields of Activity

The Hearings Committee is established to assist the Council by hearing and determining matters where a formal
hearing is required under the provisions of the:

Resource Management Act 1991.
Building Act 2004.

Health Act 1956.

Dog Control Act 1996.

Litter Act 1979.

Hastings District Council Bylaws.
Local Government Act 1974.

Local Government Act 2002.

Membership 10 Hearings Commissioners (comprising at least 7 seven elected members of
Council and up to 3 externally appointed Independent Hearings Commissioners)

Chair appointed by Council from the membership including externally appointed members.
Deputy Chair appointed by the Council from the membership including externally appointed members.

Under section 39B of the Resource Management Act, the Chair must be accredited, and unless there are
exceptional circumstances, appointees on hearings panels must have accreditation to make decisions on;

e Applications for Resource Consents.

e  Notice of Requirements given under section 168 or 189.

e  Requests under clause 21(1) of Schedule 1 for a change to be made to a Plan.
e  Reviews of Resource Consents.

e  Applications to change or cancel Resource Consent Conditions.

e  Proposed Policy Statements and plans that have been notified.

e Any hearing of an objection under section 357C.

Quorum

a)

b)

For Hearings other than Council Initiated Plan Change hearings, a maximum of three members including the
Chair (or Deputy Chair, in the Chair’s absence) to meet for any one hearing.

For Council Initiated Plan Change hearings, all members may attend and take part in the decision-making
process unless the Chair exercises the power of delegation to assign any function, power or duty of the
Hearings Panel to any one or more Commissioner.

For Hearings other than Council Initiated Plan Change hearings the quorum shall be two members.
For Council Initiated Plan Change Hearings, the quorum shall be three members.

Members to sit on any hearing other than a Council Initiated Plan Change Hearing shall be selected by
agreement between the Chair (or Deputy Chair, in the Chair’s absence) and the Group Manager: Planning and
Regulatory Services.

For the purpose of hearing any objection in respect of the matters detailed under the Dog Control Act 1996 the
Hearings Committee will consist of any three members selected by the Chair.
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4, Risk and Assurance Committee

Fields of Activity

The Risk and Assurance Committee is responsible for assisting Council in its general overview of financial
management, risk management and internal control systems that provide;

e  Effective management of potential risks, opportunities and adverse effects.

e  Reasonable assurance as to the integrity and reliability of the financial reporting of Council.
e Monitoring of Council’s requirements under the Treasury Policy.

e  Monitoring of Councils Strategic Risk Framework.

Membership

e  Membership (6 including 4 Councillors).

e Independent Chair appointed by Council.

e  Deputy Chair appointed by Council.

e 2 external independent members appointed by Council.

Quorum — 3 members

DELEGATED POWERS

Authority to consider and make recommendations on all matters detailed in the Fields of Activity and such
other matters referred to it by Council.
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5. Heretaunga Takoto Noa Maori Standing Committee
This is established between the Hastings District Council and the Maori community.
Context

The Heretaunga Takoto Noa Maori Standing Committee has been established by Council to continue the
development of strategic and sustainable relationships with Maori. Council shall meet the intent and spirit of the
Council’s obligations set out in the legislation more particularly the obligations of the Local Government Act 2002;

e  Towards establishing and maintaining processes that provide opportunities for Maori to contribute to the
decision processes of Council.

e  Fostering the development of Maori capacity to contribute to these processes.
e  The provision of information to assist Maori contribution to Council’s activities.

The Council wishes the Committee to reflect a spirit of partnership between the Council and the community and to
contribute effectively to the Council’s activities. To enable this to occur the Fields of Activity and Delegated Powers
are framed with the widest scope possible.

The Council wishes the Committee to assist with the development of an integrated policy framework (based on
Treaty of Waitangi Principles) for the Council aimed at delivering effective governance, engagement and service
delivery for Council’s Maori Communities.

Fields of Activity

e To provide policy advice with respect to the District Plan, regarding provisions for Wahi Tapu, Papakainga, and
where relevant to Tangata Whenua, any other amendments to the Plan.

e To provide input to the Long Term Plan and Annual Plan with particular reference to those issues of importance
to Maori from within the District.

e  To host Council Hui and Hapu events.

e  To provide insight into Maori and other strategic community issues with particular reference to the Long Term
Plan, the effectiveness of the District Plan and the delivery of the Annual Plan.

e  To consider and recommend Maori capacity building activities within budget and resource constraints of
Council.

e  To assist Council as appropriate in conducting and maintaining effective, good faith working relationships with
the Maori community including advice on governance arrangements.

e To make decisions as to the allocation of Marae Development Fund grants within the allocated budget.

e  To assist Council with the development of an integrated policy framework and work programme to enable
effective governance, engagement and service delivery for Council’s Maori Communities.

e  Tonominate from among its members people whom it considers appropriate for the Council to appoint as
members of its other Committees and Subcommittees.

Membership (12 Members)

e  Chair —to be elected at the first meeting of the Committee at the beginning of each triennium; and from
among the appointed Tangata Whenua members of the committee.

e  Deputy Chair —to be elected at the first meeting of the Committee at the beginning of each triennium from
among the elected members of the committee.

e  The Mayor.
e 5 Councillors.

e 6 members from Tangata Whenua to be appointed by the Council and Kaumatua, taking into account the “post
settlement environment” and Mataawaka.

ITEM 19 PAGE 73

ltem 19

Attachment 1



- Committee and Rural Community Board Register of Delegations 2019- Attachment 1
2022

DELEGATED POWERS

1) Authority to exercise all Council powers, functions and authorities in relation to the matters detailed in the
Fields of Activity such as to enable recommendations to the Council on those matters.

2) Authority to make decisions on the allocation of Marae Development Fund grants within the allocated
budget.

3) Authority to develop procedures and protocols that assist the Committee in its operation provided that
such procedures and protocols meet the statutory requirements of the Local Government Act 2002, the
Local Government Official Information and Meetings Act 1987 and Council’s Standing Orders.

The Chair shall not have a casting vote.

Note: The Terms of Reference for the Heretaunga Takoto Noa Maori Standing Committee are subject to review by the Committee at its first
meeting in the 2019 Triennium.
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6. Hastings District Licensing Committee

A statutory Committee under the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012.

Fields of Activity

e To consider and determine applications for Licences and Manager’s Certificates.

e To consider and determine applications for renewal of licences and manager’s certificates.

e To consider and determine applications for temporary authority to carry on the sale and supply of alcohol in
accordance with section 136 of the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012.

e To consider and determine applications for the variation, suspension, or cancellation of special licences.

e To consider and determine applications for the variation of licences (other than special licences) unless the
application is brought under section 280 of the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012.

e  With the leave of the Chair for the Licensing Authority, to refer applications to the Alcohol Regulatory Licensing
Authority.

e  To conduct inquiries and to make reports as may be required of it by the Licensing Authority under section 175
of the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012.

e Any other functions conferred on licensing committees by or under this Act or any other enactment.
Membership

e  Chair appointed by Council.

e  Deputy Chair appointed by Council.

e 2 members selected by the Chair from a list developed and maintained by Council.

Quorum

For uncontested applications only the Chair, or Deputy Chair in the Chair’s absence, is required.

For contested applications 3 list members including the Chair or the Deputy Chair in the Chair’s absence.

STATUTORY POWERS

A licensing committee has all the powers conferred on it by or under this Act or any other Act, and all powers as
may be reasonably necessary to enable it to carry out its functions.

Committee Secretary

The Chief Executive is the Secretary of the Hastings Licensing Committee.
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7. Chief Executive Performance Committee

Context

The Chief Executive Performance Committee enables an effective and constructive approach to managing the
employment relationship with Council’s sole employee, the Chief Executive (CE). The Committee is predominantly
responsible for leading and managing processes in relation to performance review and planning, remuneration,
employment relations issues should they arise, and leading the process for CE appointments. The clear direction of
the Mayor is that the full Council will be appropriately involved throughout aspects of these various processes,
however to effectively administer the employment relationship, a Committee is the most appropriate body and
strongly recommended as best practice by the local government sector.

The work of the CE Performance Committee provides a formal process of considering the employment relationship
between the Council and the CE, to ensure there is common understanding of desired outcomes, to foster the
relationship and communication between the CE and employer, and to provide feedback on performance to the CE.

A key function of the Committee will be to lead the process of CE Performance Review & Planning. In setting
performance indicators and conducting performance reviews, the parties must take into account the requirements
of the Local Government Act 2002, as follows;

Part 4 Section 42 Chief Executive

(2) A chief executive appointed under subsection (1) is responsible to his or her local authority for:-
(a) implementing the decisions of the local authority, and
(b) providing advice to members of the local authority and to its community boards, if any; and
(c) ensuring that all responsibilities, duties, and powers delegated to him or her or to any

person employed by the local authority, or imposed or conferred by an act, regulation, or
bylaw, are properly performed or exercised; and

(d) ensuring the effective and efficient management of the activities of the local authority; and

(d)(a) facilitating and fostering representative and substantial elector particularly in
elections and polls held under the Local Electoral Act 2001; and

(e) maintaining systems to enable effective planning and accurate reporting of the financial
and service performance of the local authority; and

f) providing leadership for the staff of the local authority; and

(g) employing, on behalf of the local authority, the staff of the local authority in accordance
with any remuneration and employment policy; and

(h) negotiating the terms of employment of the staff of the local authority in accordance with
any remuneration and employment policy.

(3) A chief executive appointed under subsection (1) is responsible to his or her local authority for
ensuring, so far as is practicable, that the management structure of the local authority —

(a) reflects and reinforces the separation of regulatory responsibilities and decision-making
processes from other responsibilities and decision-making processes; and

(b) is capable of delivering adequate advice to the local authority to facilitate the explicit
resolution of conflicting objectives.

(4) For the purposes of any other Act, a chief executive appointed under this section is the principal
administrative officer of the local authority.

And
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Terms of employment of Chief Executive
(2) The local authority and the chief executive must enter into a performance agreement.

The CE Performance Review & Planning process commences with an agreement between the CE and their employer
on the Performance Plan for the coming financial year. This Performance Plan includes overarching performance
expectation information as well as specific Key Performance Indicators. The Key Performance Indicators detail the
performance area, the specific goals and objectives, and the targets or measures.

It is the Mayor’s intention to gather input from all Councillors and other stakeholders, when undertaking the process
to determine performance expectations, Key Performance Indicators and desired behaviours/competencies, as well
as when reviewing achievement of those during the review phase.

An experienced consultant will be retained to facilitate the process for performance review and planning. The role
of the consultant is not one of decision maker, appraiser or evaluator, but is to assist and guide the Committee.

e  Mayor is the Chair
° Deputy Mayor

° External Consultant

Note: attendance at any meetings of the Chief Executive Performance Committee is restricted to those members specifically appointed. The
Chair may remove this restriction at her discretion, and given the intentions documented above, this is likely to occur.

DELEGATED POWERS

1) Review the Chief Executive’s performance at least annually on the results achieved against:
e  Overarching Performance Expectations.
e  Key Performance Indicators.
° Competencies/Behaviours

2) Assess the Chief Executive’s performance.

3) Set new objectives for subsequent years.

4) Report to Council at the completion of performance review processes.

5) Recommend to Council remuneration changes for the Chief Executive in line with employment agreement
requirements.

6) Asrequired, lead the appointment process for a Chief Executive and make appropriate recommendations
to Council.

7) Manage any employment relations issues that may arise.

8) Engage external advisors as required.
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Part3 Community Board

1. Hastings District Rural Community Board

The Community Board is a separate entity to Council. The role of the Community Board is set out in Section 52 of
the Local Government Act 2002. The Council is authorised to delegate powers to the Community Board.

Membership (6 members)

e  Chair (elected by the Board).

e  Deputy Chair (elected by the Board).

e 4 Elected Community Board Members.
e 1 Mohaka Ward Councillor.

° 1 Kahuranaki Ward Councillor.

Quorum — 4 members

DELEGATED POWERS

General
1) To maintain an overview of services provided by Council within the Community Board’s area.
2) Torepresent, and act as an advocate for, the interests of the community represented.

3) To consider and report on all matters referred to the Board by Council, or any matter of interest or concern
to the Community Board.

4)  To communicate with community organisations and special interest groups within the community.
5) To undertake any other responsibilities that are delegated to it by Council.

6) To appoint a member of the Community Board to organisations approved by the Council from time to
time.

Long Term Plan/Annual Plan/Policy Issues

Authority to make a submission to the Long Term Plan/Annual Plan process on activities, service levels and
expenditure (including capital works priorities) within the Board’s area or to make a submission in relation to any
policy matter which may have an effect within the Board’s area.
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Authority to exercise the Council’s powers and functions in relation to roads within the Board’s area under the
following sections of the Local Government Act 1974:

e  Section 335 (vehicle crossings);
e  Section 344 (gates and cattle stops);
e  Section 355 (overhanding trees).

Authority to exercise the Council’s statutory powers (including any relevant powers conferred by bylaw) over roads
within the Board’s area in respect of;

e  Road user behaviour at intersections.

e  Controls on stopping or overtaking.

L Controls on turning.

e  Pedestrian safety.

e  Footpath maintenance and improvements.

e Accident investigation studies, lighting and other safety works.

For the avoidance of doubt, nothing in this delegation authorises a Community Board to deal with a matter, in the
exercise of delegated authority, in a manner which is in conflict with any policy or decision of Council or any
standing committee of Council in relation to the same matter.
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2.  Rural Halls Subcommittee

A subcommittee of Council.

Fields of Activity

The Rural Halls Subcommittee is responsible for assisting the Rural Community Board by;
e  Reviewing applications for grants from the Rural Halls Community Fund.

e  Recommending the allocation of grants within the funding available.

e  Recommending changes in criteria for grants.

Membership (8 Members)

e  The Chair is also the Chair of the Rural Community Board.

e 6 Rural Community Board Members (including 1 Mohaka Ward Councillor and 1 Kahuranaki Ward Councillor).
e 2 Heretaunga Ward Councillors.

Quorum — 4 members

DELEGATED POWERS

1) Review Applications for Grants from Rural Halls Maintenance Fund.
2) Recommending the allocation of grants within the allocated funding.

3) Recommending changes in criteria for grants from the Rural Halls Maintenance Fund.

ITEM 19 PAGE 80

ltem 19

Attachment 1



- Committee and Rural Community Board Register of Delegations 2019- Attachment 1
2022

Part4 Subcommittees

1. District Development Subcommittee

A Subcommittee of the Strategy and Policy Committee.

Fields of Activity

The District Development Subcommittee is responsible for advising the Strategy and Policy Committee by;

e  Providing guidance to Council Officers in respect of the drafting of Council’s District Development Strategies
and providing oversight of community engagement through the Special Consultative Procedures.

e  Providing oversight of the development of Council’s District Development Strategy.

e  Providing oversight of the implementation of Council’s Housing Development, Transport Development,
Economic Development, Urban Zone Development and City Centre Revitalisation and Central Business Districts
Development Strategies.

e  Providing oversight of the development of the Council’s 3 Waters strategy.

e  Providing guidance to Council Officers relating to development of rating policies and the reviews of existing
rating policy.

Membership

e 6 Councillors.

e 1 Heretaunga Takoto Noa Maori Standing Committee Member appointed by Council.
e  Chair appointed by Council.

e  Deputy Chair appointed by Council.

Quorum — 3 members

DELEGATED POWERS

1) To review and provide comment on draft District Development Strategies, and to recommend to the
Strategy and Policy Committee the adoption of draft Strategies for consultation.

2) Torecommend to the Strategy and Policy Committee the final wording of any new or reviewed District
Development Strategy for adoption by the Committee or Council.

3) Torecommend to the Strategy and Policy Committee changes to rating policy for consideration for
inclusion in the Long Term Plan and Annual Plan.
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2. Eco District Subcommittee

A Subcommittee of the Strategy and Policy Committee.

The Eco District Strategy works in tandem with the District Development and Great Communities Strategies. This
forms the environmental lens to our business, recognising that the other strategies have a more primary focus on
both the Economic, and Social/Cultural wellbeing dimensions of the Local Government Act 2002.

It recognises that for real success environmental wellbeing cannot be traded for economic gain and that we want a
future-focused district that plans and cares about the future, enhancing its natural and built environment. We need
to rise to the challenges of the future and realise the benefits to society from creating clean energy, lowering carbon
emissions and reducing our ecological footprint. Our response to changes in our economy, society and climate must
leave our environment in a better place. A key role for Council is to grow our district in a sustainable way.

The Eco District Subcommittee is responsible for advising the Strategy and Policy Committee by;

e  Providing guidance to Council officers in respect of the drafting of Council’s ECO District Strategies and
providing oversight of any relevant Special Consultative Procedures.

e  Providing oversight of the implementation of the Council’s ECO District Strategies.

e  Providing oversight of the implementation of Councils Green Corridor, Reserve Management Plans, Climate
Change, Coastal Hazards, Sustainability and Biodiversity strategies.

e 6 Councillors.
e 1 Heretaunga Takoto Noa Maori Standing Committee Member appointed by Council.
e  Chair appointed by Council.

e  Deputy Chair appointed by Council.

DELEGATED POWERS

1) To review and provide comment on draft new or revised ECO District Strategies and to recommend to the
Strategy and Policy Committee the adoption of draft Strategies for consultation.

2) Torecommend to the Strategy and Policy Committee the final wording of any new or reviewed ECO District
Strategy for adoption by the Committee or Council.

3) Toreview and provide comment on new or revised Reserve Management Plans and to recommend to the
Strategy and Policy Committee the adoption of draft Reserve Management Plans for consultation.
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3.

Great Communities Subcommittee

A Subcommittee of the Strategy and Policy Committee.

Fields of Activity

The Great Communities Subcommittee is responsible for advising the Strategy and Policy Committee by;

Providing guidance to Council officers in respect of the drafting of Council’s Community Strategies, and
providing oversight of any relevant Special Consultative Procedures.

Providing oversight of the implementation of Council’s Community Strategies.

Providing oversight of the implementation of Councils Community Plans, Fabulous Flaxmere, Safer Hastings,
Civic Pride and Events, Youth Pathways, Keep Hastings Beautiful Strategies, Health, Cultural, Education, Sports,
Arts and Heritage strategies.

Membership

6 Councillors.
1 Heretaunga Takoto Noa Maori Standing Committee Member appointed by Council.
Chair appointed by Council.

Deputy Chair appointed by Council.

Quorum — 3 members

DELEGATED POWERS

1)

2)

To review and provide comment on draft new or revised Community Strategies and to recommend to the
Strategy and Policy Committee the adoption of drafts for consultation.

To hear and consider all submissions received in respect of any Community Strategy proposal and to
recommend responses to the Strategy and Policy Committee.

To recommend to the Strategy and Policy Committee the final wording of any new or reviewed Community
Strategy for adoption by the Committee or Council.

ITEM 19 PAGE 83

ltem 19

Attachment 1



- Committee and Rural Community Board Register of Delegations 2019- Attachment 1
2022

4. District Planning and Bylaws Subcommittee

A Subcommittee of the Strategy and Policy Committee.

Fields of Activity

The District Plan Subcommittee is responsible for advising the Strategy and Policy Committee by;

e  Providing guidance to Council officers with regard to the drafting of the District Plan (or sections thereof) and
consultation on discussion documents and drafts.

e  Providing guidance to Council officers in respect of the drafting of Council’s new or revised bylaws, and
providing oversight of the Special Consultative Procedures.

e  TeTira Toitd te Whenua — Hastings District Plan Cultural Values to consider and advise Council how the cultural
values of Waahi Taonga and Waahi Tapu are to be integrated within the District Plan.

Membership

e 6 Councillors.

e 3 Heretaunga Takoto Noa Maori Standing Committee Members appointed by Council.
e 1 externally appointed member with relevant qualifications and experience.

e  Chair appointed by Council.

e  Deputy Chair appointed by Council.

Quorum — 5 members including 3 Councillors

DELEGATED POWERS

1) To review and provide comment on draft new or received District Plan provisions and to recommend to
the Strategy and Policy Committee the adoption of drafts for consultation.

2) To hear and consider all submissions reviewed in respect of any District Plan proposal and to recommend
responses to the Strategy and Policy Committee.

3) Torecommend to the Strategy and Policy Committee the final wording of any new or reviewed District
Plan provisions for adoption by Council.

4) Toreview and provide comment on draft new or reviewed bylaws, and to recommend to the Strategy and
Policy Committee the adoption of drafts for consultation for onward recommendation to Council to hear
submissions and formal adoption.

5) Torecommend to the Strategy and Policy Committee the final wording of any new or reviewed bylaw for
adoption by the Council.
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5.

Civic and Administration Subcommittee

A Subcommittee of the Operations and Monitoring Committee.

The Civic and Administration Subcommittee is responsible for making delegated decisions and advising the
Operations and Monitoring Committee by;

Assisting Council in the allocation of Community Grants by;
—  Reviewing applications for Community Grants.

— Setting appropriate performance measures to assist in the measurement of delivery of activities funded
from Grants.

— Allocation of grant funding within the budget allocation.

Assisting Council in its general overview of procurement and tender activity by accepting tenders which exceed
the Chief Executive’s delegated authority to approve, for projects previously approved by Council or a Standing
Committee within the delegated authority.

Assisting Council by reviewing and considering submissions and deciding applications for temporary closure of
roads.

Recommending to Council the appointment of trustees to Te Mata Park Trust Board.
Recommending to Council the appointment of directors to Hastings District Holdings Limited.
Recommending to Council the appointment of List Members to the District Licencing Committee.

Assisting Council by reviewing, considering nominations and recommending recipients of Civic Awards.

8 Councillors.
1 Heretaunga Takoto Noa: Maori Standing Committee Member appointed by Council.

Group Manager Planning and Regulatory Services to be a member only when the Subcommittee is
recommending the appointment of List Members to The Hastings District Licencing Committee.

The Chief Executive to be a member only when the Committee is making a decision on tendering and
procurement matters.

The Group Manager: Asset Management to be a member only when the Subcommittee is making a decision on
tendering and procurement matters.

The Transportation Manager to be a member only when the Committee is making a decision on applications
for temporary closure of roads.

The Environmental Consents Manager to be a member only when the Committee is making a decision on
applications for temporary closure of roads.

The Chair of the Te Mata Park Trust Board to be a member only when the Committee is making a decision on
appointments to the Te Mata Park Trust Board.

The Chief Financial Officer to be a member only when the Committee is making a decision on appointments to
the boards of any Council Controlled Organisations.

Chair appointed by Council.

Deputy Chair appointed by Council.

A minimum of three members.
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DELEGATED POWERS

1) Authority to exercise all Council’s powers, functions and authorities (except where prohibited by law or
otherwise delegated) in relation to the allocation of grant funding within the budget allocation.

2) Authority to accept tenders for individual projects previously approved by the Council or a Standing
Committee of the Council up to a value of $10,000,000.

3) Responsibility to provide oversight and direction on tendering processes in general and/or specific issues
relating to a particular project.

4)  All the Council’s powers and functions in respect to temporary prohibition of traffic under Section
342(1)(b) and clause 11(e) of Schedule 10 of the Local Government Act 1974.

5) Recommend to Council the appointment of Trustees to Te Mata Park Trust Board in accordance with the
policy on Appointment of Trustees for Te Mata Park Trust Board, and the provisions of section 57 of the
Local Government Act 2002.

6) Recommend to Council the appointment of director positions for Hastings District Holdings Limited in
accordance with the Council’s Policy on Appointment and Remuneration of Directors for Council
Organisations.

7) Recommend to Council the recipients of Civic Awards.

8) Recommend to Council the appointment of List Members to the Hastings District Licensing Committee in
accordance with the policy on the appointment of members for the District Licensing Committee, and the
provisions of Sections 192 — 194 of the Sale and Supply of Alcohol Act 2012.
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Part 5 Joint Committees

1. Hastings District Council: Tangata Whenua Wastewater Joint Committee

This Joint Committee is established between Hastings District Council and representation of Tangata Whenua.
Fields of Activity

To be actively involved in developing and monitoring Council’s;

e  Wastewater treatment and disposal system policies.

e  Receiving, reviewing and recommending action on reports concerning the operation and performance of the
Council’s wastewater disposal system.

e Ocean discharge including alternative treatment and disposal options.

e  Provision of advice in regard to the Trends, Technology, Discharge, Environmental and Monitoring Nine Yearly
Review, in accordance with the Resource Management Act 1991 and Policies and Plans under the Act.

e Torecognise and respect the role of Tangata Whenua as Kaitiaki, and, to satisfy their cultural concerns.
To receive, review and recommend action on wastewater reports.

To recommend the commissioning of reports and future Council actions on wastewater issues including;

e  Options for further treatments.

e  Options for methods of disposal.

e  Monitoring effects on the environment.

To co-ordinate and oversee education of the community on wastewater issues.

Membership (10 Members)

e  Chair appointed annually by the Joint Committee from its members. The Chair position is to alternate annually
between the Council and Tangata Whenua representatives.

e 5 Councillors.
e 5 Tangata Whenua representatives, appointed by Council.

Quorum — 6 members including not less than 3 Councillor representatives

DELEGATED POWERS

Recommendation to Operations & Monitoring Committee on matters within the Fields of Activity.

The Chair shall not have a casting vote.
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2. Hawke’s Bay Crematorium Committee

The Hawke’s Bay Crematorium Committee was established by Order in Council on 9 June 1989 as part of The Local
Government (Hawke’s Bay Region) Reorganisation Order 1989.

1) The Hastings District Council shall establish and maintain a committee to be called the Hawke’s Bay
Crematorium Committee.

2) The membership of the Committee shall consist of:
a) Two members to be appointed by the Napier City Council (NCC); and
b) Two members to be appointed by the Hastings District Council (HDC); and
c) One member to be appointed by the Central Hawke's Bay District Council (CHB).

3) The Hastings District Council shall delegate to the Hawke’s Bay Crematorium Committee such functions, duties
and powers in respect of the supervision and operation of the Hawke’s Bay Crematorium as the Council
considers appropriate.

Membership (5 Councillors)

e  Chair appointed by the Committee.

e  Appointed in accordance with the Reorganisation Order:
e 2 HDC Councillors.
e 2 NCC Councillors.
e 1 CHB Councillor.

Quorum — 3 members

DELEGATED POWERS

Authority to develop policies and provide operational and financial oversight of the Hawke’s Bay Crematorium.
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3. Joint Waste Futures Projects Steering Committee

Background

Section 43 of the Waste Minimisation Act 2008 states that a territorial authority must adopt a Waste Management
and Minimisation Plan (WMMP) which provides:

e  Objectives, policies and methods for effective and efficient waste management and minimisation.
e  Collection, recovery, recycling, treatment and disposal services.

e  Facilities for waste management.

e  Waste minimisation activities including education and public awareness; and

e Aframework for funding implementation, grants and advances of money.

In 2014 the Joint Council Waste Futures Project Steering Committee was established to oversee and manage a range
of programmes and interventions to achieve effective and efficient waste management and minimisation within the
Omarunui Landfill catchment.

The WMMP must be reviewed every 5 years. Council adopted the WMMP in 2019.
Purpose

e To be responsible for overseeing, supporting, monitoring and reporting progress toward achieving the intent of
WMMP.

e Torepresent the interests of Council in the WMMP.

e Toreview the Joint Waste Management and Minimisation Plan at least every six years to meet the
requirements of the Waste Management Act 2008.

Members (6 Councillors)

e  Chair — Councillor from one Council elected by Group.

e  Deputy Chair — Councillor from the other Council elected by Group.

e 2 other HDC Councillors.

e 2 other NCC Councillors.

Status

By agreement of the local authority member, the Joint Waste Futures Joint Project Steering Committee has been

established as a Joint Committee under clause 30A of Schedule 7 of the Local Government Act 2002.

DELEGATED AUTHORITY

The Joint Committee will have responsibility and authority to:

1) Accept and hear submissions on the joint Waste Management and Minimisation Plan 2017-2023, and
report back to the individual Council on an as required basis.

2) To make recommendations to each participant Council on the Waste Management and Minimisation Plan.

3) To monitor performance and progress to give effect to the purpose of the WMMP and to make
recommendations to the constituent Councils accordingly.

Administering Authority and Servicing

Hastings District Council shall administer the Joint Committee meetings.
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The Hastings District Council’s Standing Orders will be used to conduct the Joint Committee meetings.

The Joint Committee shall meet as and when required as agreed for the achievement of the purpose of the joint
committee.

The quorum at any meeting shall be not less than four (4) including not less than two representatives of each of the
member bodies.

e  The members shall strive at all times to reach a consensus.
e  Each representative shall be entitled to one vote at any meeting.

e  There shall be no casting vote.

Any member may propose an amendment (including additions or deletions) to the Terms of Reference which may
be agreed to by the Joint Committee.

Variations to the Terms of Reference must be referred to the constituent Councils for ratification.

The primary purpose of this Joint Committee is the approval and adoption, by both Councils, of the Waste
Management and Minimisation Plan 2018. However the Joint Committee will continue to meet as and when
required to oversee performance of the WMMP in operation.
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4.

Omarunui Refuse Landfill Joint Committee

The Heads of Agreement for the Omarunui Refuse Landfill Joint Committee have been adopted by Council for the
2019-2022 Triennium and are incorporated into the Committee & Rural Community Board Register of Delegations.

1. Parties Hastings District Council and Napier City Council (the Councils)
2. Nature of A Joint Committee between the Councils who already own a property at Omarunui as tenants in common in

Relationship the following shareholding percentages for refuse disposal purposes:

Hastings District Council: 63.68%

Napier City Council: 36.32%

3. Objectives To jointly develop and operate generally for the benefit of the Councils a refuse disposal facility (including
any ancillary activities) in compliance with resource and regulatory consents.
4.  Participation of Each Council shall participate on the basis of the following shareholding percentage:

each Council Hastings District Council: 63.68%

Napier City Council: 36.32%

(subject to any specific provisions following)

5. Joint Committee
5.1 Omarunui Refuse This Committee shall comprise four elected members of the Hastings District Council and two elected

Landfill Joint members of the Napier City Council or the alternates of those elected members and an alternate when

Committee acting in the place of an elected member shall be deemed to be an elected member. The functions of this

(Joint Committee):  Joint Committee shall be to determine policies to ensure the objectives are achieved and to monitor the

implementation of those policies by obtaining reports from the Facility Manager or any other persons

involved in the refuse disposal operation.
5.2 Administering The Hastings District Council shall be the Administering Authority. It shall provide technical, financial and

Authority secretarial services and shall be the employing authority for staff required in the administration and

conduct of the refuse disposal operation. The Administering Authority shall make any information required

by the Joint Committee available to that Committee.
6. Joint Committee 1.1 Subject to Clause 6.2 the general powers of the Joint Committee shall be:

General Powers a)  Except as provided in Clause 6.3 all such powers as shall be necessary to develop and operate
the refuse disposal facility in compliance with the resource and regulatory consents already
obtained including, if necessary, the power to seek further resource and regulatory consents.

b)  To construct buildings, purchase and dispose of plant, equipment and materials.

c) Arrange insurance cover to ensure that there is comprehensive insurance in respect of the
establishment and operation of the refuse disposal facility.

d)  Toindemnify any Council or Council representative acting on behalf of the Councils pursuant
to this agreement in connection with the development or operation of the refuse disposal
operation after the execution hereof.

e) Tofix and recover fees and charges payable by landfill users.

f)  Thelicensing of users.

g) Torecommend to the Councils the raising of loans. For the purpose of loan raising the
‘Administering Authority’ shall undertake all loan raising on behalf of the Councils.

h)  To enter into contracts within the estimates it being acknowledged by each of the Councils for
the purposes of the Local Government Act 2002 that the Joint Committee shall be delegated
power to enter into any contract limited to such an amount as may be fixed by the Councils
from time to time unless the prior written approval of each Council shall have been obtained.

i) Toiuse any part of the Omarunui property not required for refuse disposal for any lawful
purpose including leasing thereof.

j) Such further specific powers as may be delegated to it as agreed by the Councils.

1.2 The Joint Committee shall operate within budgets approved by the Councils. In the event that over
expenditure is anticipated or incurred the Joint Committee shall immediately report that fact to the
Councils.

1.3 The powers delegated to the Joint Committee shall not entitle that Committee to sell or otherwise
dispose of on behalf of any Council any asset owned by that individual Council or to sell the
Omarunui land or any other land administered by the Joint Committee for refuse disposal
purposes.

1.4 Subject to Clause 6.2 and 6.3 all decisions made by the Joint Committee pursuant to its delegated
powers shall without confirmation of the Councils bind each of the Councils as if it had been done
in the name of each Council.
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7. Joint Committee 7.1 Each elected member or the alternate of such member shall have one vote.
Procedural Matters 77 The elected members shall elect a Chair and Deputy Chair.

7.3 Quorum at meetings shall be four elected members including at least one elected member from
each Council. The parties note that this conflicts with the provisions in clause 30 (9) (b) of schedule
7 of the Local Government Act 2002. To avoid any possible doubt the parties shall operate the
committee based on the specific requirements in this agreement at all times.

7.4 All meetings may be attended by officers of the Councils but officers shall not be entitled to vote.

7.5 Meetings may be requisitioned by any two elected members who shall state the nature of the
business and the Administering Authority shall convene a meeting (giving notice of the business)
and Councils shall ensure that at least one of their elected members attends.

7.6 Annual meetings shall be held within three months of the end of the financial year and the business
of such meeting shall include the financial accounts for the previous year.

7.7 Budget estimates for the following financial year shall be prepared and supplied to the Councils no
later than 31 January in each year for their approval.

7.8 Meeting procedures shall be in accordance with NZS 9202: 2003, or such other version of standing
orders as mutually agreed between the parties, except to the extent that specific provision is
contained herein and is not contrary to law.

8. Joint Committee 8.1 The Joint Committee shall provide financial and management accounting records and reports which

Financial Provisions provide sufficient detail to enable the committee and the Councils to assess performance of each
separate business activity within the Landfill.

8.2 The administering authority shall circulate a draft budget prior to the meeting at which the Joint
Committee is to consider the estimates for recommendation to the Councils.

8.3 Surpluses and deficits shall be received and borne by the Councils in the following shareholding
percentage:

Hastings District Council: 63.68%
Napier City Council: 36.32%

8.4 All amounts payable by each Council shall be paid within one calendar month of notification of the
amount payable. If any Council shall consistently fail to make payments as required by this clause the
Joint Committee may impose a penalty on the defaulting Council which shall be met by such Council.

9.  Duties of the 9.1 To comply with the resource and regulatory consents relating to the operation.

Individual Councils g3 The Councils shall make bylaws to ensure the efficient operation of the refuse disposal facility and
set and adopt fees and charges and licensing procedures.

9.3 To establish and operate transfer stations and to adopt charges in relation to such transfer stations.

10. Changesin 1.1 The establishment and operating costs of the Councils up to the time of any Change in Participation

Participation shall be safeguarded as far as possible.

1.2 The addition or withdrawal of any party shall require agreement of the Councils.

11. Staff Appointments  11.1 ~ Where any Council is involved in the provision of staff or services, such Council shall be reimbursed
for the cost of such persons or services.

11.2  Itis recognised that it will be desirable for the staff required to be employed by one of the Councils.

12.  Facility Manager 12.1  The Facility Manager appointed by the Administering Authority shall be a suitably qualified person
who shall report to the Joint Committee and attend its meetings and will be responsible for the day
to day operations at the landfill site.

12.2  During any further development the Facility Manager, as appointed by the Administering Authority,
shall be considered to be the officer responsible for all development activities unless otherwise
directed by the Joint Committee.

13. Secretarial Services  13.1  Secretarial and Accounting services shall be provided by the Administering Authority.

13.2  The functions to be fulfilled shall include:

a) Convening of meetings.

b)  Keeping of minutes.

c)  Preparation of estimates and accounts.

d) Keeping the Joint Committee informed.

e) The recovery of fees and charges.

f)  Such further specific powers as may be delegated by agreement of the Councils.

13.3  All documents to be signed on behalf of the Joint Committee shall be signed by the Chair (or in his
absence one elected member of that Committee) together with such other person authorised by
the Administering Authority.

14. Commencement 14.1  This Joint Committee shall commence from the date of this agreement and shall continue

and Duration thereafter until terminated by agreement of the Councils.
14.2  On termination of this agreement the assets shall be applied, first, in the repayment of all debts,

second, in the repayment of any capital contributions, advances or sums of money that may have
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15. Arbitration

143

15.1

15.2

been made or may be due to any of the Councils, third, the surplus, if any, shall be distributed
between the Councils in the following shareholding percentage:

Hastings District Council: 63.68%

Napier City Council: 36.32%

In the event of a short-fall on the termination of this agreement the Councils shall contribute in the
following shareholding percentage:

Hastings District Council: 63.68%

Napier City Council: 36.32%

To such short-fall, with any necessary adjustments being made to reflect any amounts due by or to
any individual Council at termination.

In the event of any dispute relating to this agreement the same shall be referred to arbitration
pursuant to the Arbitration Act 1996 and each Council who is a party to the dispute shall be entitled
to appoint an Arbitrator.

The Arbitrators before embarking on the Arbitration shall appoint an umpire whose decision shall
be final in the event that the Arbitrators are unable to agree.
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5.

Clifton to Tangoio Coastal Hazards Strategy Joint Committee

Terms of Reference for the Clifton to Tangoio
Coastal Hazards Strategy Joint Committee

As at 28 September 2018.

As adopted by resolution by:
Hastings District Council 23 March 2017

Napier
Hawke

City Council 31 May 2017

‘s Bay Regional Council 28 June 2017

For the purpose of these Terms of Reference:

“Act” means the Local Government Act 2002.
“Administering Authority” means Hawke’s Bay Regional Council.

“Coastal Hazards Strategy” means the Coastal Hazards Strategy for the Hawke Bay coast between Clifton and
Tangoiol.

“Council Member” means an elected representative appointed by a Partner Council.

“Hazards” means natural hazards with the potential to affect the coast, coastal communities and
infrastructure over the next 100 years, including, but not limited to, coastal erosion, storm surge, flooding or
inundation of land from the sea, and tsunami; and includes any change in these hazards as a result of sea
level rise.

“Joint Committee” means the group known as the Clifton to Tangoio Coastal Hazards Strategy Joint
Committee set up to recommend both draft and final strategies to each Partner Council.

“Member” in relation to the Joint Committee means each Council Member and each Tangata Whenua
Member.

“Partner Council” means one of the following local authorities: Hastings District Council, Napier City Council
and Hawke’s Bay Regional Council.

“Tangata Whenua Appointer” means:

e  The trustees of the Maungaharuru-Tangitl Trust, on behalf of the Maungaharuru-Tangitl HapQ;
° Mana Ahuriri Incorporated, on behalf of Mana Ahuriri Hapa;

. He Toa Takitini, on behalf of the hapl of Heretaunga and Tamatea.

“Tangata Whenua Member” means a member of the Joint Committee appointed by a Tangata Whenua
Appointer

I The Coastal Hazards Strategy is further defined in Appendix 1 to these Terms of Reference.
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2.1.  The Joint Committee shall be known as the Clifton to Tangoio Coastal Hazards Strategy Joint Committee.

2.2.  The Joint Committee is a joint committee under clause 30(1)(b) of Schedule 7 of the Act.

3.1.  Each Partner Council shall appoint three Council Members and alternates to the Joint Committee. If not
appointed directly as Council Members, the Mayors of Hastings District Council and Napier City Council and
the Chair of Hawke’s Bay Regional Council are ex officio Council Members.

3.2.  Under clause 30(9) Schedule 7 of the Act, the power to discharge any Council Member on the Joint
Committee and appoint his or her replacement shall be exercisable only by the Partner Council that
appointed the Member.

4.1. Each Tangata Whenua Appointer may appoint one member to sit on the Joint Committee.

4.2.  Each Tangata Whenua Appointer must make any appointment and notify all Tangata Whenua Appointers and
Partner Councils in writing of the appointment.

4.3. The Tangata Whenua Members so appointed shall be entitled to vote.

4.4,  Under clause 30(9) Schedule 7 of the Act, the power to discharge any Tangata Whenua Member on the Joint
Committee and appoint his or her replacement shall be exercisable only by the Tangata Whenua Appointer
that appointed the Member.

5.1. The purpose of these Terms of Reference is to:

5.1.1. Define the responsibilities of the Joint Committee as delegated by the Partner Councils under the Act.

5.1.2. Provide for the administrative arrangements of the Coastal Hazards Strategy Joint Committee as detailed in
Appendix 2.

6.1. Members, or their confirmed alternates, will attend all Joint Committee meetings.

The Joint Committee has the responsibility delegated by the Partner Councils for:

7.1.  Guiding and providing oversight for the key components of the strategy including:

e  The identification of coastal hazards extents and risks as informed by technical assessments;
e  Aframework for making decisions about how to respond to those risks;

e A model for determining how those responses shall be funded; and

e  Aplanforimplementing those responses when confirmed.

7.2.  Considering and recommending a draft strategy to each of the Partner Councils for public notification;

7.3.  Considering comments and submissions on the draft strategy and making appropriate recommendations to
the Partner Councils;

7.4.  Considering and recommending a final strategy to each of the Partner Councils for approval;
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7.5.

7.6.

Advocating for and/or advancing the objectives of the strategy by submitting on and participating in
processes, including but not limited to:

. Council long term plans;

. Council annual plans;

. District and regional plan and policy changes;
. Reserve management plans;

U Asset management plans;

. Notified resource consent applications;

. Central Government policy and legislation.

Investigating and securing additional sources of funding to support strategy implementation.

The following powers are not delegated to the Joint Committee:

8.1.

8.2.

9.1.

9.2.

10.1.

10.2.

10.3.

10.4.

11.1.

11.2.
11.3.
11.4.
11.5.

Any power that cannot be delegated in accordance with clause 32 Schedule 7 of the Local Government Act
2002.

The determination of funding for undertaking investigations, studies and/or projects to assess options for
implementing the Coastal Hazards Strategy.

Each Partner Council shall be responsible for remunerating its representatives on the Joint Committee and
for the cost of those persons' participation in the Joint Committee.

The Administering Authority shall be responsible for remunerating the Tangata Whenua Members.

The Hawke’s Bay Regional Council standing orders will be used to conduct Joint Committee meetings as if the
Joint Committee were a local authority and the principal administrative officer of the Hawke’s Bay Regional
Council or his or her nominated representative were its principal administrative officer.

The Joint Committee shall hold all meetings at such frequency, times and place(s) as agreed for the
performance of the functions, duties and powers delegated under this Terms of Reference.

Notice of meetings will be given well in advance in writing to all Joint Committee Members, and not later
than one month prior to the meeting.

The quorum shall be 6 Members, provided that at least one Partner Council Member is present from each
Partner Council.

In accordance with clause 32(4) Schedule 7 of Act, at meetings of the Joint Committee each Council Member
has full authority to vote and make decisions within the delegations of this Terms of Reference on behalf of
the Partner Council without further recourse to the Partner Council.

Where voting is required, all Members of the Joint Committee have full speaking rights.
Each Member has one vote.
Best endeavours will be made to achieve decisions on a consensus basis.

As per HBRC Standing Order 18.3: The Chair at any meeting does not have a deliberative vote and, in the case
of equality of votes, has no casting vote.
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12.1.

12.2.

13.1.

13.2.

13.3.

14.1.

15.1.

15.2.

On the formation of the Joint Committee the members shall elect a Joint Committee Chair and may elect up
to two Deputy Chairs. The Chair is to be selected from the group of Council Members.

The mandate of the appointed Chair or Deputy Chair ends if that person through resignation or otherwise
ceases to be a member of the Joint Committee.

All reports to the Committee shall be presented via the Technical Advisory Group? or from the Committee
Chair.

Following each meeting of the Joint Committee, the Project Manager shall prepare a brief summary report of
the business of the meeting and circulate that report, for information to each Member following each
meeting. Such reports will be in addition to any formal minutes prepared by the Administering Authority
which will be circulated to Joint Committee representatives.

The Technical Advisory Group shall ensure that the summary report required by 13.2 is also provided to each
Partner Council for inclusion in the agenda for the next available Council meeting. A Technical Advisory
Group Member shall attend the relevant Council meeting to speak to the summary report if requested and
respond to any questions.

In the event of any circumstances arising that were unforeseen by the Partner Councils, the Tangata Whenua
Appointers, or their respective representatives at the time of adopting this Terms of Reference, the Partner
Councils and the Tangata Whenua Appointers and their respective representatives hereby record their
intention that they will negotiate in good faith to add to or vary this Terms of Reference so to resolve the
impact of those circumstances in the best interests of the Partner Councils and the Tangata Whenua
Appointers collectively.

Any Member may propose a variation, deletion or addition to the Terms of Reference by putting the wording
of the proposed variation, deletion or addition to a meeting of the Joint Committee.

Amendments to the Terms of Reference may only be made with the approval of all Members.

2 A description of the Technical Advisory Group and its role is included as Appendix 2 to these Terms of Reference.
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Part 6 Advisory Groups

1. Landmarks Advisory Group

Fields of Activity

The Landmarks Advisory Group is established to advise the Council on planning the implementation of the
Landmarks Developments.

Membership (9 Members)
e  Chair appointed by Council.

4 other Councillors.

The Landmarks Trust Chair.

e 3 others nominated by the Landmarks Trust.

Quorum —5 members including not less than 3 Councillor members.

DELEGATED POWERS

1) To make recommendations to Council on Landmarks design elements in Council initiated projects.

2) To approve public art projects that are budgeted for.

3) To approve grants from the Abbott Bequest.

4)  To make recommendations to the Council on Landmarks projects for inclusion in the Long Term Plan.

5) To monitor the Landmarks Development Plan and the Hastings CBD Strategy and its programme delivery
and effectiveness.

The Landmarks Advisory Group reports to the Eco District Subcommittee.
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2. Youth Council

Fields of Activity

The Youth Council's role is to:

Provide a youth perspective on issues.

Make sure the views of young people are canvassed and passed on to Council.

Give advice on planning and infrastructure, particularly relating to any direct impact on young people.

Promote and encourage youth involvement in planning and developing Council services.

Provide input on policy and strategic development.

Membership (numbers decided by the Group Manager Communities and Facilities)

T
[ ]

his membership should be representative of:
Gender.
Mixed abilities.
Geographical location.
Educational level.
Employment/unemployment.

Diverse Cultural Backgrounds.

Quorum — 50% of the current members

DELEGATED POWERS

1) To promote and oversee the matters within the Fields of Activity.

2) Toreport its work and progress to the Great Communities Subcommittee.

Meetings

Youth Councillors are expected to attend fortnightly or monthly or meetings, help organise the Youth Potential
awards, take part and attend events that have been confirmed by the Youth Council, and attend an overnight
retreat.

T

he Youth Council reports to the Great Communities Subcommittee.
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3. International Advisory Group

Fields of Activity

The Hastings District International Advisory Group is established to advise Council on the development of education,
scientific research, migration and cultural relationships with cities in China and the rest of the world, and develop
relationships with ethnic communities in Hawke’s Bay through the knowledge and experience gained from our Sister
City relationship with Guilin.

Membership (10 Members)

e  Chair — Councillor appointed by Council.

e  Hastings District Mayor.

e 2 other Councillors.

e 1 representative of the Hawke’s Bay branch of the New Zealand China Friendship Society.
e 1 representative of the Hawke’s Bay Chinese Association.

e 2 representatives of the Multicultural Association Hawke’s Bay.
e 1 representative of the Education Link Group.

e 1 representative of the Hastings District Youth Council.

e 1 representative of the Hawke’s Bay Settlement Support

e Upto 2 other members may be co-opted at any time.

Quorum —5 members including not less than 2 Councillor members

DELEGATED POWERS

1) To promote and oversee sister city activity between Guilin and Hastings District such as delegation visits
and cultural exchanges.

2) To support the development of relationships between Hastings District or Hawke’s Bay based educational
establishments with those in China and the rest of the world.

3) Toreport its work and progress to the Great Communities Subcommittee.

Meetings

Meetings will be held a minimum of three times a year. These are to be advertised as public meetings, and will be
fully serviced by the Council’s Governance and Democracy Team.

The International Advisory Group reports to the Great Communities Subcommittee.
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Part 7 District Champions

1. Role of District Champions
e  Ensure progress is made towards the Council's strategic priorities and projects within their area of interest.

e  Play a strategic and policy leadership role in their areas of responsibility assisting the Council to meet its
strategic objectives.

e  Enhance relationships with key stakeholders.
e  Collaborate with committee chairs where objectives are shared.
e Work effectively with Council officers.

e  Attend any advisory groups or external appointments made and ensure an alternate is available if they cannot
attend projects and activities.

e Asfaras possible attend Council launches of new activities and projects in their area of interest.
e  Ensure Council's advisory groups have effective input into their areas of interest.

e  Keep the Mayor informed of emerging issues.

e  Maintain a no-surprises approach for elected members and staff.

The district Champions also facilitates informal policy discussion between elected members, public and officials on
matters within their areas of interest.

2. Hastings District Ambassador

Fields of Activity

The Hastings District Ambassador Champion is to promote Hastings District Civic Pride and ensure the celebration of
Community cultural, economic, social and environmental successes and progress.

Working collaboratively with the Mayor, the Ambassador will be an advocate for Civic Pride and Hastings District
promotional events (noting the Mayor is Council’s principal spokesperson).

DELEGATED POWERS
No delegated authority.
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3. Hastings District Transport Development Champion

Fields of Activity

The Hastings District Transport Development Champion is to promote Hastings District transport initiatives and
choices including;

e  Public Transport.

° Regional Transport.

e (Cars.

e  Cyclingand | Ways.

e  Walking.

e  Hawke’s Bay Airport and Airline Choices.

Working collaboratively with the Mayor, the Transport Champion will be an advocate for transport improvements

(noting the Mayor is Council’s principal spokesperson).

DELEGATED POWERS
No delegated authority

4. Flaxmere Development Champion

The Flaxmere Development Champion is to promote the Council focus on Flaxmere and ensure the celebration of
Flaxmere cultural, economic, social and environmental successes and progress.

Working collaboratively with the Mayor, the Flaxmere Development Champion will be an advocate for Flaxmere
(noting the Mayor is Council’s principal spokesperson).
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Policy on Elected Members' Allowances and Expenses - July 2019 Attachment 1

Attachment 1 to Report

Hastings District Council

Policy on Elected Members’
Allowances and Expenses 2019

(As adopted by Councilon ...........ccccvveeinannne )
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1.

INTRODUCTION

In addition to determining the remuneration of elected members, the
Remuneration Authority (the Authority) is required to determine the allowances’
framework for elected members.

The payment of any or all allowances is at the discretion of each local authority.
Hastings District Council provides for elected member allowances though the
Policy on Elected Members’ Allowances and Expenses adopted by Council.

COMMENCEMENT

The provisions of this policy take effect from 22 August 2019.

POLICY ON ALLOWANCES AND EXPENSES

3.1 Parking
Elected members will be provided with parking spaces at, or close to, the
Council’s offices for their use when on council business.

Elected members who incur parking charges when on Council business at
other locations are entitled to reimbursement of the actual cost.

1.2 Use of Public Transport
Elected members who travel by public transport in relation to Council business are
entitled to reimbursement of the actual cost. Evidence of the cost incurred should
be provided.

3.3 Mayor’s Vehicle
The Mayor of the Council will be eligible to be provided with a vehicle. If the Mayor
elects to have the vehicle available for private use, a deduction will be made from
their salary as determined by the Authority.

3.4 Mileage Allowance
Subject to the interpretation and exceptions listed below, elected members,
excluding the Mayor if provided with a vehicle, are entitled to a mileage allowance
when using their own vehicle for Council business.

Eligibility for mileage allowance commences from the members’ primary place of
residence until the conclusion of their Council business travel.

Mileage will be paid at the maximum rate per kilometre as set out in the current
Remuneration Authority determination.

Interpretation
With respect to mileage allowances and reimbursement of public transport costs,
the term “Council business” includes attendance at the following:
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o Official meetings of the Council and any committee and subcommittee of
Council

e Council workshops
¢ Meetings and workshops of advisory groups established by Council

¢ Meetings and workshops of external bodies to which the elected member has
been appointed by Council

e Statutory hearings
¢ Meetings of Council-owned companies

¢ An external event or meeting where there has been:
— A resolution of Council or a committee, or
— An authorisation by the Counci’s Mayor, or
— With respect to the member of a committee, an authorisation by the
Chairperson of that committee

e Visits to, and tours of, facilities, or sites, or works, for which the Council is
responsible for, or has involvement in, or which will be the subject of business
to come before the Council or any committee

e Seminars and training courses where the elected members’ attendance has
been authorised

¢ Discussions with committee chairpersons or Council officers

o Consultation with Mayors, territorial authority committee chairpersons, or
elected members

o Official briefings

Mileage may include travel to and from the members’ primary place of residence,
if the travel is:

(a) Inthe members’ own vehicle; and
(b) On Council business as outlined above; and
(c) By the most direct route reasonable in the circumstances

“Council business” does not include events where the primary focus is on social
activity.

Exceptions

If Hastings District Council is providing transport, and an elected member chooses,
for personal reasons, to travel separately, they will not be entitled to a mileage
allowance.

Where an elected member chooses, for personal reasons, to travel by private
motor vehicle to a council authorised conference or seminar outside of the
Hastings District, they will be entitled to a mileage payment no more than the
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cheapest equivalent air fares available for the day(s) of travel, where such fares
are less than the mileage allowance at ordinary rates.

3.5 Communications Allowance

It is expected that elected members have their own communications and computer
equipment and that these items are available for elected members to use for their
Council related business.

Elected members having such items available for Council business are eligible to
receive a communication allowance. The rate payable will be the maximum rate
determined by the Authority. The rate will be divided into annual allowances for
each eligible item made available by the member for Council business purposes:

— Personal computer, tablet, or laptop, including and related docking station
— Printer

— Mobile phone

— Mobile calls

— Internet connection

An elected member may be issued with a standard specification Hastings District
Council mobile tablet device for use on Council business. The use of loaned
equipment by an elected member is subject to the following conditions:

— The loaned equipment is provided for Council business purposes
— The loaned equipment remains Hastings District Council’s property at all
times and must be returned when requested

Hastings District Council will provide a mobile phone for the Mayor and cover all
expenses associated with the use of that phone on Council business. The phone
remains the property of the Council, and the communication allowance payable to
the Mayor will be reduced as outlined above to reflect the provision of the phone.

3.6 Travel Time Allowance

Elected members are entitled to a travel time allowance in relation to travel
undertaken in relation to Council business. The rate payable will be the maximum
rate determined by the Authority.

3.7 Childcare Allowance

An elected member who is responsible for one or more children under 14 years of
age may claim a childcare allowance for childcare required whilst the elected
member is on council business, for each eligible child up to the annual maximum
limit set by the Authority.

The childcare allowance is only payable if:
(a) The member is a parent or guardian of the child, or is a person who usually
has responsibility for the day-to-day care of the child (other than on a

temporary basis); and

(b) The child is aged under 14 years of age; and
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(c) The childcare is provided by a person who —
0] Is not a family member of the member; and
(i) Does not ordinarily reside with the member; and

(d) The member provides evidence satisfactory to Hastings District Council of the
amount paid for childcare.

Payment of the allowance will be made on submission of a childcare allowance
claim from the member. The claim must set out
¢ the actual costs incurred and paid by the member,
e the date for which the claim is for,
¢ the nature of the council business the member was undertaking, and
e must include a receipt invoice or other appropriate record of payment for
the childcare services provided.

3.8 Travel from Additional Place of Residence
Where an elected member has an additional place of residence (e.g. a holiday
home) and they are travelling from that additional place of residence, and that
travel involves a distance and/or duration greater than they would travel if they
were travelling from their primary place of residence, then they will only be eligible
to claim for the mileage and travel time that would have been incurred from their
primary place of residence.

3.9 Conferences, Courses, Seminars, etc.
Elected members authorised to attend a conference, course, seminar, etc., will
have attendance fees, travel, accommodation, and meals paid for. Unless
otherwise agreed by the Chief Executive, all travel and accommodation will be
booked through Democratic Services.

Core training will be organised by Democracy and Governance Services. Elected
member attendance at one-off events in New Zealand will be subject to approval
by the Mayor; in the case of attendance by the Mayor approval will be by the Chief
Executive and Manager: Democracy and Governance Services

Overseas conference attendance is to be approved by the Mayor and Chief
Executive.

3.10 Clothing

Elected members may be supplied with clothing bearing the Council’s branding.
These remain Council property at all times.

3.11 Stationery
Stationery is available on request for use on Council business.
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3.12 Councillors’ Lounge

Elected members are entitled to use the Councillors’ Lounge in the Hastings
District Council office for Council business purposes.

3.13 Travel Insurance
Travel insurance will be provided for overseas travel on Council business.

3.14 Personal Accident Insurance
HDC'’s personal accident insurance includes cover for the death or bodily injury of
an elected member. Any payment received as a result of a claim made under this
cover in respect of an elected member is payable to the Council, and will be utilised
for Council purposes only, e.g. as a contribution to the costs of running an
extraordinary election. No payment will be made to the elected member (or their
estate) who is the subject of the claim.

3.15 Payment
Where applicable, allowances will be paid fortnightly.
Claims for expenses should be made fortnightly on the forms provided, no later
than three months after the date the mileage or expense was incurred, and should

include all relevant receipts.

Payment will be made by direct credit.
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